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I. ACROI{YMS AND GLOSSARY OFTERMS
AGPO: Access to Govemment Procurement Opportunilies

A-in-A Appropriations in Aid

AFC: Agricultural Financc Corporation

BETA: Bottom-UpEconomicTransformationAgenda

CARB: County Allocation of Revenue Bill

CCF: Climate Change Fund

CGS: Crcdit Guarantee Scheme

CSD: Central Securities Dcpository

DORB: Division of Revenuc Bill

IPSAS: Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (trSAS)

IRMF: InstitutionalRiskManagementFramework

KRA: Key Result Areas

MCDAs: Ministries, Counties, Departments and Agencies

MDAs: Ministries, Departrnents and Agancies

MSME: Micro, Small and Medium Entcrprises

NIFC: Nairobi lnternational Financial Centre

NHIF: National Hospital Insurance Fund

NSSF: National Social Security Fund

PFM: Public Finance Management

PSSS: Public Servicc Superannuation Scheme

RK-FINFA: Rural Kenya Financial Inclusion Facility

RTPs: Restrictive Trade Practices

SACCOs: Saving and Crcdit Cooperativc Orgarizations

SAGAs: Semi-AutonomousGovernmentAgencies

VFM: Value for Money
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2. NATIONAL TREASURY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Background Information
TheNationalTreasurywasestablishedviatheF-xeculiveorderNo.lof2023.Thebasisfor
esiublishm.nt of the National Treasury is found in Arlicle 225 (i) of the Constitution of Kenya

*ii"f,-- ri"r that an Act of Parliament shall provide for the establishment, functions and

,.rp"rtiiiii,i"t of the National Treasury' This has been actualized in Section 11 and l2 of the

Public Finance Management (PFM) Act 2012 '

At Cabinet level, the National Treasury is represented by the Cabinet Secretary for National

rr"*r.y and Economic planning, who ii responsible for the general policy and strategic direction

of the Ministry.

Vision
"Er.""tl"n"" in economic and public financial management' and development planning"

Mission:,i" p."ia" leadership in economic and public financial management, and developm-ent planning

fo, ,fi"..a gro*n through formulation, implementation and moniloring of economic' financial and

development Policies".

Core Values
TheNationalTreasuryisguidedbythefollowingcorevalues:.CustomerFocus'Resultsoriented,
ii"l"r,"ia"r participation, Pr#ssionalism and Ethical Practices, Transparency and

e""ornr"Uifiry, tntegiity, Teamwork and Commitment all geared towards excellence in service

delivery.

Mandate of the Natiotral Treasury
ri,"Nution,ITreasuryderivesitsmandatefromArticle225oflheConstitution,PublicFinance
M;;;g;;""i Act 2Oi2 and the Executive order No.l of 2023. The National Treasury will be

;;;;;;r; its mandate in consistency with any other legislation as mav be developed or reviewed

by Parliament from time to time'

Tbe core functions ofthe National Treasury as derived fiom the above legal provisions include:

(i)
(ii)

( iii)
(iu)
(u)
(ui)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)
(x)
(xi)

(xii)
(xiii)
(xiv)
(xv)

Overall Economic Policy Management;

Management of Public Finance;

Formulation of National Budget:

Public Debt Management;
fo""rf.tion and Nlaintenance of Government Accounting Standards;

Bitateral and Multilateral Financial Relations;

Capital Markets PolicY;

Oversight over Revenue Col lection;

Cornp""ti,ion Pollcy Management; National Pensions Pol icy Management;

lnsurance PolicY and Regulation;

Public Procurement and Disposal Policy;

Public lnvestment Policy and Oversight;

b.rlfop."n, and Enforcement of Financial Govemance Standards;

f ir*.f'"f Sector Analysis and Management including SACCOs' NSSF and NHIF;

Financial lnstitutions Oversi ght;

Ill
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(xvi) Management of National and County Governments Finaacial Management System and
Standard s;

Development of Kenya as an lnternational Financial Centre;
Anti-Money Laundering Policy;
Custodian of National Govemment Assets and Properties; and,
Secretariat 10 Intergovemmental Budget and Economic Council.

(xvii)
(xviii)

(xix)
(xx)

Role of the National Treasury in the Devolved System of Governmenl

The National Treasury is mandated by law to

(i) Strengthen financial and fiscal relations between the National Govemment and County
Govemments and support for county governments in performing their functions;

(ii) lssue guidelines on the prepamtion ofcounty development planning;
(iii) Prepare the annual legislative proposals on intergovemmental fiscal transfers;
(iv) Provide logistical support to intergovernmental institutions overseeing

intergovemmental fi scal relations;
(v) Coordinate the development and implementation of financial recovery plans for

County Govemments that are in financial distress;
(ri) Build capacity of County Governments on public finance maragement matters for

efficienr, effective and transparent financial management as well as planning,
monitoring and evaluation; and,

(vii) Adminiser the Equalization Fund.

(b) Key Management
The National Treasury day{o-day managemenl is under the following key offices.

Office of the Principal Secretary
The Office of the Principal Secretary is responsible for the day-to-day administration of the
National Treasury operations and is the accounting officer. In addition, the Principal Secretary is
charged with the responsibility of providing advice to the Cabinet Secretary in order to enhance
effi ciency and col lective responsibility.

Organizational structure of the National Treasury
The National Treasury is orgaaized into five (5) technical Directorates headed by Directors
General and (l) Administrative and Support Services Directorate headed by a Principal
Administrative Secretary. Each Director General is responsible for a Directorate comprising a
cluster of Departments responsible for related policy functions. ln addition, the National Treasury
has two independent departments namely Public Procurement and Intemal Auditor General,
headed by Directors and a Public Finance Management Secretariat headed by a Programme
Coordinator. The Directorates and Departments are as follows:

Directorate ofBudget, Fiscal and Economic Alfairs
The Directorate is headed by a Director General, reporting to rhe Principal Secretary, National
Treasury. It is orgaaized into the following four (4) Technical Departments each headed by a
direclor:
(a) Budget Department;
(b) Macro and Fiscal Affairs Department;
(c) Financial and Sectoral Affairs Department; aad,
(d) Inter-Govemmental Fiscal Relations Department.

IV
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Directorate of Accounting Services and Quality Assurance

The Directorate is headed by a Director General reporting to the Principal Secretary, National

Treasury. lt is organized into the following four (4) Technical Departments each headed by a

Director:
(a) Government Accounting Serv ices,

(b) Information Financial Management Systems (lFMlS);
(c) National Sub-County Treasuries; and,

(d) Government Digital Payments Unit.

Directorate of Public Investment and Portfolio Management

The Directorate is headed by a Director General, reporting to the Principal Secretary. It is

organized tnto the following four (4) Technical Departments each headed by a Director:

(a) Covemment lnvestment and Public Enterprrses;

(b) National Assets and Liabilities Management;

(c) Pensions DePartment; and,

(d) Public lnvestment Management Unit-

Directorate of Public Debt Management Office

The Directorate is headed by a Director General, reporting to the Principal secretary. It is

organized into the following three (3) Technical Departments each headed by a Director:

(a) Resource Mobilization (Front Office);

iU) O"Ut Policy, Strategy and Risk Management (Middle Office); and,

(c) Debt Recording and Settlement (Back Office)'

Directorate of Public Private Partnership

The Directorate is headed by a Director General, reporting to the Principal Secretary on matters

relating to Public Private Partnership.

Directorate of Administrative and Support Services (Common Shared Services)

The Directorate is headed by a Principal Administrative Secretary, reporting to the Principal

i""r"tury. lt is organized into ren (10) specialized functions offering common shared services. The

"o,nron 
shared iervices of fie National Treasury consist of functions that are not core to the

Nution"tTreasurybutoffercriticalsupportservicestotheNationalTreasury.Thefunctions
include:
(a) Accounting;
(b) Finance;
(c) Human Resource Management and Development;

(d) Central Planning and Project Monitoring;
(e) Supply Chain Management;

(f) Legal;
(g) Public Communications;
(h) General Administration;
(i) Intemal Audit; and,

6) rcT.
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(d) Fiduciary Management

The key rnanagement personnel who held oflice during the financial year ended 3Oth June 2023
and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

To manage the fiduciary risk, the National Treasury has put in place fiduciary oversight
arrangements including setting up committees. The key oversight anangements include:

S/NO. Designation Name
1 Principal Secretary Dr. Chris Kiptoo, CBS
2 Principal Administralive Secretary Mr. Samson Wangusi, OGW
3 Dircctor General, BFEA Mr. Alben Mwend4 HSC
4 Direclor General, Accounting Services Mr. Bemard Ndung'u, MBS
5. Direclor Gencral, PIPM Mr. Lawrence Kibct
6 Direeor General, PDMO Dr. Haron Sirm4 EBS
7 Director Gencral, PPP Mr. Christopher Kirigu4 OGW
8 Director Macro and Fiscal Affairs Departrnent Mr. Musa Kathanje
9 Di rector, Budgct Dcpartmcnt Mr. Francis Anyona, OGW
t0. Ag. Director, Financial and Sectoral Affairs Departrnent Mr. Mark Obongo
I l. Director, Public Procurement Departmcnr Mr. Eric Korir
12- Ag. Dircctor, Intergovernmental Fiscal Relations

Department
Ms. Josephinc Kanyi, HSC

t3 Ag. Director, lntcmal Auditor Gencral Ms. Jane Micheni
14. Ag Dircclor, Govemment Accounting Services

Department
Mr. Jona Wala

l5- Ag. Dircgtora National Sub County Trcasurics Mr. Francis Kariuki, OGW
16. Ag. Dircclor, Information Financial Management System Mr. Mboni Kyallo
11. Ag. Direclor, National Assels and Liability Management Mr. Geoftey Malombe
t8. Dircctor, Govemmcnt Invcstment and Public Enterprises Mr. Ker:uncdy Ondicki
19. Director Pensions DcparEnent Mr. Michael Kagika. EBS
20- Ag. Dircctor, Public Investmcnt Management Unit Dr. Pat-ick Mugo
2l Ag. Director, Resourcc Mobilization Depart nent Mr. David Komen
22 Director, Debt Poliry, Stratery and Risk Management

Department
Mr. Danicl Ndolo

23 Ag Dircctor, Dcbt Recording and Settlement Department Mr. G Kariuki
24- Director Administ-ation Mr. Eli ah Son
25. Head, Accounts Division Mr. Georgc Gichuru
26. Head, Finance Mr. Ambrose Ogango
27. Senior Deputy Dircctor, SCM Mr. Calcb Ogot
28. Deputy lntemal Auditor General. Intema] Audit Unit Ms. Lucy Mugwc
29. Principal State Counsel, Legal Unit Ms. Faith Pesa
30. Director, Human Resourcc Management and Devclopment Mr. Benson Giuthua
31. Ag Director, Information Communication and Technology Ms. Lynn Nyongcsa
32. Dircclor, Central Planning and Projea Monitoring

Departmcnt
Mr. Antony Muriq HSC

33. Hcad Public Communications Ms. Catherinc Nioroge
34. Programme Coordinator, Public Financial Managemcnt

Reform Sccretariat
Mr. Julius Mutua
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(i) Audit Committees

InlinewiththePublicFinanceManagementAct,theNationalTreasuryhasestablisheda
Minir,.ri"lAuditCommitleecomprisingfivemembers,threeofwhomareindependentThe
a;;;il"" provides overall oveisight and quality assurance including follow up on the

effectiveness of implementalion of audit recommendations

Further, the National Treasury established an audit committee comprising of officers- from-all

deDartmentsoftheMinistry,underthechairmanshipoftheSeniorChiefFinanceofficer'The
cl#iii".,*r.*. -a "nrlyr., 

all audit queries and mal<es recommendations on how to reduce

il;""ry risks. ln addition, t'he co.mitte. pr.p"r.s ,.rponr"s ro all audit queries for presentation

1o the relevant committees of parliament'

(ii) Public Finance Management Committees

Budget Implementation Steering Committee

ln order to effectively monitor the implementation of the National Government budget

irpi".""riii"", the National Treasury has established a. steering Committee chaired by the

Cabinet Secretary, National Treasury and Economic Planning' The Principal Secretaries for the

N"ii""^f Treasury and State Department for Economic Planning provide general oversight in the

Budget implementation.

Budget Implementation Technical Committee

TheCommitteeischairedbythePrincipalAdministrativeSecretaryandcomprisestheDirectors
C"n"ruf"navariousHeadsofDepartmentTheCommitteeisresponsibleformonitoringthe
i'",r"ilrpi"r*,ation of the identi{ied measures and programmes and reporting detailed progress

on the same regularlY.

Budget ImplemeDtation Ministerial Committee

TomonitortheimplementationoftheMinistry'sbudget'programmesandactivities'theNational
Treasury has appointed a committee 

"omptising 
of officers from all the Departments of the

f.Air"t,l,. The iommittee reviews and analyses the progress made by Departments in the

i;;l;;;il;" of budgel and the planned programmes and activities and advises the management

accordinglY.

(iiD Senior Management Committee

To monitor the implementation of the Ministry's programmes and performance' the National

ir"^r.y i^ 
"ppoint"a 

S"nio' Management Committee comprising of Directors General The

i"..ii". *.,ji"es reports fiom departments, build consensus on National Treasury responses to

;;;;;; issues, challenges -J 'ltkt 
ard ensures that the decisions made are implemented in a

ii#f"v',irii"r. 
'edditioially, ih. Tr"urrry consritured Ad hoc Committees to handle sPecific

assignments in the Financjal Y ear 2022/23 '

vll
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(iv) Other oversight activities

Other fiduciary oversighl arrangements include the following committees with specific objectives;

Project Implementation Committee

To monitor the implementation of the Govemment's Infrastructure Projects, the National Treasury
has established a Project Steering Committee comprising Principal Secretaries from
implementing Ministries and appointed a technical committee comprising officers fiom the
technical departments of the Ministry. The committees review and analyse the progress made by
ministries in the implementation of domestically and externally funded projects and advises
accordingly.

Parliamentary Activities

In order to effectively manage the parliamentary activities relating to the Ministry, tlre National
Treasury has established a committee and designated a liaison officer to coordinate the activities
under the Office of the Cabinet Secretary.

Development Partner Oversight

To effectively manage Official Development Assistance to the Govemment, the National Treasury
has, under the Public Debt Management, a department responsible for all matters relating ro
Development Partners. The Department has various Units that coordinate different development
partner activities in the Country.

Public Financial Management Sector Workitrg Group

To facilitate the implementation of financial management reforms, the National rreasury has
appointed scnior officers to the Public Financial Managemenl Sector Working Group. The
Committee plays an oversight role in the implementation of financial reforms in the public service
in collaboration with the development partners.

Monitoring and Evaluation

The Ministry undertakes monitoring and evaluation exercises to establish progress made in rhe
implementation of various programmes ard projects including those that are funded by the
development partners.

vt tl
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The National Treasury Headquarters
P.O. Box 30007- 001 00,

Treasury Building,
Harambee, Avenue
NAIROBI, KEI.IYA

The Nation al TreasurY Contacts
Telephone: (25 4)020 -2252299

Email: Co munication@t reasury ke

Website: www-treasury o.ke

The National Treasu rY Bankers
Central Bank ofKenYa
Haile Selassie Avenue
P.O. Box 60000
City Square 00200

NAIROBI, KENYA

Independent Audito rs
Auditor General
Office ofthe Auditor General

Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O Box 30084
GPO 00100
NAIROBI,KET{YA

Principal Legal Adviser
The AttomeY General

Shte Law Omce
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 401 12

City Square 00200
NAIROBI, KEI{YA
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3. STATEMENT OF GO\'ERNANCE

(i) Brief of Key Leadership Structure
The National Treasury and Economic Planning is divided into two entities: The National Treasury
and State Department for Economic Planning. It is represented by the Cabinet Secretary who is

responsible for the general policy and stategic direction of the Ministry.

At the top management level, the National Treasury is headed by the Pnncipal Secretary who rs

the accounting officer and is responsible to the Cabinet Secretary in the performance of his duties.
The National Treasury has six Directorates headed by Director Generals and a Principal
Administrative Secretary who is responsible for Administration and Support Services.

The National Treasury Leadership Structure

Cabinet Secretary, The National Treasury & Economic
Planning

Principal Secretary, the National Treasury

Director General
Directorate of Accounting

Services & Quality Assu rance

Director General
Directorate of Budget, Fiscal

and Economic Alfairs

Director General
Directorate of Public

IDvestment & Portfolio
Management

Director General
Directorale of Public Debt

Management Office

Director General
Directorate of Public, Private

Partnership

Principal Administrative Secretary 
1

Directorate of Administrative
Services

(ii) Management Committees Established and Their Roles
The National Treasury has appointed managements committees to monitor the implementation of
programmes, projects and report on their performance. They include:

Top Management Committee
Top Management Committee comprises of Cabinet Secretary, Principal Secretary and Directors
General. The Committee receives reports from departments, build consensus on National Treasury
responses to emerging issues, chal)enges and risks and ensures that the decisions made are
implemented in a timely manner.
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(iiD Tbe Audit Committee
In line with the Public Finance Management Act, the Nalional Treasury has established a

Ministerial Audit Committee comprising of the Chairperson and four members, of which lhree are

independent. The members were appointed on l5'h December,2022.

The Commiftee provides overall oversight and quality assurance including follow up on the

effectiveness of implementation of audit recommendations.

The Committee is active and meets on a quarlerly basis to deliberate on their functions.

(iv) Risk Management, compliance, conflict of interest

The National Treasury appointed risk champions who have been trained. The processes of
developing a risk management framework have commenced

(") Recent Trainings and development in governance for those in key leadership
'iie National Treasury supported those in key leadership positions to aflend leadership and

strategic management courses at the Kenya school of Govemment and other reputable

intemational institutions.

(ri) Publicparticipationactivities
ihi Nationul Tr"^rry underscores the imporlance for public participation as provided for under

the constitution of Kenya and Public Finance Management (PFM) Act,2012 by giving Kenyans

opportunities to intenogate proposed amendments to the PFM AcL,2012 and make submissions

on'their views for coniiderition in policy making and implementation so as to strenglhen and

deepen good governance. The National Treasury carried out Public Sector Hearings for the

fropos"J Buaga for the FY 2022123 and the medium term by holding both physical meelings and

virtual hearinls. In addition, it carried out five (5) public participations in all regions in the

country on thJ proposed Privatization Bill, 2023. The National Treasury provided an opportunity

to all Kenyani aCross the country to interrogate the Public Finance Management Act 2012

Amendmenis that aimed at settling debt anchored in line with intemational best practices.

(vii) Compliance with laws and regulations
fn" N"tion^t Treasury complies with the Constitution of Keny4 all applicable laws and

regulations in line with acceptable national and inlemational standards as well as its internal

polici"s. Th. National Treasury identified and documented all laws and regulations that are

applicable in its oPerations.

The National Treasury through the legal unit is planning to carry out the first legal compliance

audit in september 2023124 FY, to establish the level of adherence of applicable laws, rules,

regulations and slandards, and make recommendations for implementation

xl
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4. STATEMENT BY TIIE CABINET SECRETARY

In accordance with Section 12 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, the National
Treasury is responsible for coordinaling the country's economic and financial management.

Overall, the National Treasury has continued to maintain a policy environment that is conducive

to economic growth and development of the country.

The FY 2022/23 marked the transition from the previous administration to the current one. The
first half of the FY 2022123 was marked by slow implementation of programmes and projects due

to inadequate revenue resources and transition related challenges. There was a general slowdown
of economic activities.

This was occasioned by external shocks including supply chain problems and prolonged Covid-19
impacts in the global arena; climate change occasioning tie worst drought in 40 years and the

ongoing Russia - Ukaine conflict.

Economic Growth

The Kenyan economy slowed down to a growth of 4.8 percent in 2022 compared to a revised
growrh of 7.6 percent in 2021 . The slowdown was due to the impact of climale change that led to

drought affecting agricultural productivity which also contributed to a slowdown in growth in
manufacturing and in wholesale and retail trade. The growth in 2022 wa-s spread across all sectors

ofthe economy but was more pronounced in service-oriented activilies.

The economy remained resilient and expanded by 5.3 percent in the first quarter of 2023,

compared to 6.2 percent in a similar quarter in 2022 (Chad I ). The growth was mainly supported
by a rebound of the agriculture sector and continued resilience of service sectors. All economic
sectors recorded positive growths, though the magnitudes varied across activities.

Chart l: Quarterly Real GDP Grorvth Rates

Source of Data: Kenya National Bureau of Statistics
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Activities in the agriculture, forestry and fishing sub-seclor expanded by 5.8 percent in the first

quarter of2023 cJmpared to a contraction of 1.7 percent in the first qtarlet of 2027 (Table l)'
ihe significantly improved performance of the sector was attributable to favorable weather

conditilns that ied to enhanced production, especially that of food crops. The performance was

evident in the significant increase in export of vegelables and fruits recorded during the first

quarter of 2023. 
-However, 

the sector's performance was somewhat curtailed by decline in milk

Jeliveries ro processors, production oftea, coffee and sugarcane'

The performance of the industry sector slowed down to a growth of 2.4 percent in the first quarter

of 2023 compared to a groMh of 4.4 percent rn the first quarter of 2022. This was mainly on

account of a slowdown in activities in the manufacturing; electricity and water supply; and

construction sub-sectors.

Manufacturingsub.sectorexpandedby2.0percentinthefirstquallerof2023comparedtoa
gro;h of 3.8" per"ent in a iimilar quarter in 2022' The groMh was mainly supported by the

I.ranufacture of food products that intluded bakery products and processing and preservation of

fish.Inthenon-foodmanufacturing,thegrowthperformancewassupportedbysubstantialgrowth
in the manufacture of basic metals and fabricated metal Products'

Electricity and water Supply sub-sector expanded by 2.3 percent in the first quarter of 2023

"o.p"r"J 
to 3.2 percent growth registered in the first quaner of 7022. The growth in the sub-

secdr was ,rpport.d by increased generation of eleclricity from renewable sources such as

i"otn"rr"f and'wind thit more than offset the decline in generation from hydroelectric sources.

ictivities of the construction sub-sector expanded by 3 l percent in the first quarter of 2023

compared ro a 6.0 percent growth in the first quarter of 2022. The slowdown in groMh of the

.".iJr', p..fo*-ce in the firsr quarter of 2023 was mirrored.in the decline of volume of cement

"onrrrjtion 
and imports ofvarious construction materials such as bitumen and iron and steel.

The activities in the services sector remained strong in the first quarter of 2023 growing by 6'0

nercenlcomDatedtoaglowthof8'5percentinasimilarperiodin2022.Thisperformancewas
ffily .n"ri"r"rized b! significant giowths in Accomm-odation and Food Service; Information

ani Cornruniartion iechnology; Transportalion and Storage; Financial and lnsurance; and

Wholesale and Retail Trade Sub-Sectors.

Accommodation and Food Servjce sub-sector is estimated to have expanded by 21.5 percent in the

first quarter of 2023 compared to 40.1 percent groMh recorded in the first quarter of 2022 '

n"tiuiti"s in the sub-sectoi have been growing steadily owing to dissipation of the effects of the

COVIO-f S pandemic that consequently led to improved ec,onomic environment in most tourist

J.rtinutionr. fr*sportation and Sioragi sub-sector grew by 6.2 percent in the first quarter.of2023

"".p*"a."agroMhofT.Tpercentinasimilarquarlerin2022.Thegrowthwasattribuledto*pior"a perfoinance in mosi ofthe subsectors, especially transportation of passenger and freight

through rail.

lnformation and communication sub-sector recorded a growth of 8.7 percent in the first quaner of

ioi: "o.p"."a 
to a groMh of g.0 percent in the Jirst quarter of 2022. This growth was mainly

,rpp"n"J'UV increale in mobile money transfers, domestic voice traffic, domestic Short

rr,1li*ging Services (SMSs), and utilized intemationai bandwidth. Financial and Insurance sub-

;;;.;t.* by 5.8 percent in the first quarter of 2023 compared to 17 0 percent growh in the

corresponding qu artet of 2022.
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The Govemment underlook reprioritization and cost-cutting measures 1o ensure smooth
implementation of priorify programmes for the remainder of the financial year.

Consequently, we managed to bring the fiscal deficit from the planned 6.2Y:o under the previous
administration to about 5.30% of the GDP by the closure of FY 2022/23. Moving forward in the
FY 2023/24, the fiscal deficit is planned to come further downto 4.4o/o of the GDP.

The FY 2022/2023 closed on a strong and positive note with total revenue collection by the year

to June 2023 growing by 7.30lo to amount to Kshs.2.36 trillion (l6-3% of GDP). Of these ordinary
revenues collected amounted to Kshs.2.04 trillion which was an annual growth of 6.4 oh a
represented a performance rate of 95.1%o against target. All tax revenue targets recorded positive
groMh, an indication ofcontinued recovery in revenue collection.

Total expenditure by end of FY 2022/23 amounted to Kshs.3.2l trillion against target of
Kshs.l.36 trillion translating to a shortfall in expenditure ofKshs.l48.4 billion.

Critical payments made that had significant impact at the grassrools, included

(i) 100% payment ofequitable share was disbursed to the 47 County Governments amounting
to Kshs.399.6 billion. This figure included the equitable share of Kshs.370.0 billion and
arrears ofKSh.29.6 billion fiom the previous year;

(ii) The entire allocation of KSh. 47.2 billion to the National Govemment Constituency
Development Fund (NGCDF); and,

(ii;) 100% Cash transfer to the Elderl to cater for their needs including for food, health and
upkeep. Additionally, all arrears for cash transfers to Orphans and Vulnerable Children
(OVCs) amounting to Kshs.l68illion were funded.

Inflation
Year-on-year overall inflation rate has been above the 7.5 percent upper bound of the policy target
range sinc€ June 2022. Inflation rare remained sticky at 7.9 percent in June 2023 same as June
2022 driven by relatively higher food and fi.rel prices. Overall annual average inflation increased
to 8.8 percent in June 2023 compared lo 6.3 percent recorded in June 2022.

Interest Rates
Monetary policy stance remains tight to anchor inflation expectations due to the sustained
inflationary pressures, increased risks to the inflation outlook, the elevated global risks such as

financial market volatility, and their potential impact on the domestic economy. In this regard, the
Central Bank Rate was raised from 9.50 percent to 10.50 percent in June 2023.
Short-term interest rates have remained relatively stable despite tight liquidity conditions. The
interbank rate increased to 9.6 percent in June 2023 compared to 5.1 percent in June 2022 while
the 9l -day Treasury Bills rate was at I I .5 percent compared to 7.9 percent over the same period.

Exchange Rates
The foreign exchange market has largely remained stable despite the tight global financial
conditions attributed lo slrengthening of the US Dollar and uncertainties regarding the ongoing
Russian-Ukraine conflict. Due to the sfong dollar, the exchange rate to the Kenya shil)ing like
with all world currencies has weakened to exchange at KSh. 139.7 in June 2023 compared to KSh.
I 17.3 in June 2022. Against the Euro, the Kenya shilling weakened to exchange at KSh l5l.4 in
June 2023 compared to KSh. 124,1 in June.2022 while against the Sterling Pound the Kenyan
shilling also weakened to exchange at KSh. 176.3 compared to KSh. 144.8, over the same period.
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Pending Bills
The total outstanding national government pending bills as at 30th June,2023 amounted to KSh.
567.5 billion. These cornprise of KSh.443.6 billion (78.2 percent) and KSh.l23.9 billion (21.8
percent) for the State Corporations (SCs) and Ministries/State Departments/other government
entities respectively. The SCs pending bills include payment to contractors/projects, suppliers,
unremitted statutory and other deductions, pension arrears for Local Authorities Pension Trust,
and others. MinistrieVState Departments and other government entities pending bills constitutes
mainly ofhistorical pending bills for the Iast two years.

The National Government policy on clearance of pending bills continues to be in force. The
National Treasury is currently developing a comprehensive strategy to clear outstanding stock of
verified pending bills of the National Government over the medium term. Ln this strategy,
deficiencies and Iapses that led to accumulation of pending bills will be addressed. In the FY
2023124 all Ministries, Departments aad Agencies (MDAs) are expected to clear all the
expenditure carryovers fromFY 2022123 as a first charge before payment of commitments of the
current financial year.

Bottom-Up Economic Transformation Agenda (BETA)

Going forward, MDAs will be required to prioritize allocations towards the achievement of the
BETA priorities while addressing the policy, legal, regulatory, and governance issues as a matter
of priority to ensure optimal use of resources in execution of the planned interventions. BETA is
geared towards economic tum around and inclusive groMh and aims 1o increase investrnents in at
least five sectors with high potential impact on the economy as well as household welfare- These
include: -
(i) AgriculturalTrans[ormation;
(ii) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise (MSME);
(iiD Housing and Settlement;
(iu) Health care; and,
(v) Digital superhighway and Creative Industry.

The BETA priorities should therefore be mainstreamed into the regular programmes of Ministries,
Depirtments and Agencies. The planning and budgering should embrace the value chain approach
ensuring that there are no funding gaps, no duplications and allows for elliciency in the use of
rcsources.

Signat Date
>-S * e5--)-DL3

llre-.........
NruGUNA NDUNG'U, CBS

CABINET SECRETARY
TIIE NATIONAI TREASURY AND ECONOIVflC PLANNING
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5. STATEMENT BY T}IE PRINCIPAL SECRETARY

Bu dget performance
The National rreasury expenditure (inclusive of A-in-A) for the Fy 2022123 stood at KSh.
102.032 billion against an approved budget of KSh. 147.56 billion translating ro an overall
absorption rate of 69.43 percent as demonstrated in the pie chart below. This translates to an
improvement of 6.43 percent fiom 63%o recorded in rhe financial yeat 2021122. cha( 2 below
presents the National Treasury total budget execution for theFy 2022123.

Chart 2: Total Allocation against Total Expenditure (KSh. Billions)

Budget execution recurrent and developemt
69.34

r 202223 Grosi Allocetion . 2022/23 Totat Expendirure o 2OryD Ablorpdon Rate (,()

When disaggregated by recurrent and development expenditure, the budget execution indicates
that recurrent expenditure (inclusive of A-in-A) stood at KSh. 48.08 billion in the Fy z02zl23
against an allocation ofKSh 61.60 billion translating to 78.05 oZ absorption rate as shown in Chart
3 below-

Chart 3: National Treasury recurrent budget execution for the Fy ZO2Z|23
Billions)

Recurent budget outturn- FY 202?.123

(KSh.

On the other hand, development expenditure (inclusive of A-in-A) absorption was KSh 54.23
billion against an allocation ofKSh 85.96 billion recording an ahsorption rate of 63.09yo as
illustrated in Chart 4 below. The underabsoprtion in development cxpenditure is attributed to
exchequer challcnges.

78.txt

s 2022/23 App.oved Budtet . 2022/23 &pendttu.e .2OZ?|Z3 t( Absorprion
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Chart 4: National Treasury development budget execution for the FY 2022123 (KSh'

Bit!io1-s)

Development budget oufturn- FY 2022123

68-09

r 2@2/23 ApPrDvcd &d3rt ' 2mU23 Expcndltu'c 202423 % Absorpdon

93.56

Budget execution for GoK Funds (Net of A-in-A)
fne frution"t Treasury expenditure for GoK funds (exclusive of A-in-A) for the FY 2022123 stood

at KSh. 67.58 billion against an allocation of KSh. 93.66 billion This translates to an absorption

,"" "izi.ls 
per cent. 

-GoK 
development expenditure forihe year was KSh.23'89 billion against

ai allocation of KSh. 41.70 billion. This con;titutes and absorption rate of 57.28 per cent. On the

"tf,"ii""a, 
recurrent GoK budget recorded an expenditure of KSh 43'69 billion against an

utto."tion of KSh. 5l 96 billioritranslating to an absorption of 84 09 per cent Chart 5 below

iltrro","t budget execution for GoK funded budget for the Fy 2022123 '

9-nfft-f i-LU-{g9-t-e1e9y!i9n-f91G--oK 
funded.budget [or theRY 2022t23 (KSh'-Billions)

GoK budget execution for FY zoz2l23
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Budget execution for externally funded resources for FY 2072173

The externally funded projects recorded an absorption ofKsh. 2.l8 billion against an allocation of
KSh. 7.44 billion translating to an absorption rale of 29.24Yo. Thc under absorption in extema)ly
funded resources was attributed to: transfer of a budget ofKSh. 2 billion for the National Treasury
Dongo Kundu Special Economic Zones to Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure; inability to
secure donor commitments; differences in accounting period of the donor, and lack of no
objection from the donors for some projects. Chart 6 below presenls the budget execution for
externally funded resources for the FY 7022123.

Chart 6: Budget execution for externally funded resources for FY 2022123 (KSh. Billions)

Budget execution for externally funded projects

29-24

a 292,./23 Approved EudFt . 292V23 txp.rdltut ' 20i2423 X Absorption

Budget Execution by Programmes

The Narional Treasury implemented the 2022/23 budget within seven economic progr.rmmes.
Tlese were: General Administration, Planning and Support Services; Public Financial
Maragement; Economic and Financial Policy Formulation and Management; Market Competition
and Creation of an Enabling Business Environment; Government Clearing Services; Raif
Transport; and Marine Trarsport. The latter three programmes were transferred to the National
Treasury by an executive directive that merged the ports, rail and pipeline services in the FY
2021n2. These three programmes have since been transferred back to the Ministry of Transport
and Infrastn:cture and will no longer be under the National Treasury reportingin theFY 2023124.

As demonstrated in the chart below, Market Competition and Creation of Enabling Business
Environment Programme had the highest absorption a|96.47 percnnt followed by Economic and
Financial Policy Formulation and Management at 75.55 percent, Rail Transport at 74.43 percent,
General Administration at 71.23 percent, Public Financial Management at 59.31 percent,
Govemment Clearing Service at 5.67 percent, and Marine transport at zero (0) per cent. The lack
of absoprtion in Government Clearing Service and Marine Transport is due to the transfer ofthe
functions to Ministry of Tranpo( and Inllastracture in the FY 2022/23. Chart 7 below illustrates
the National Treasury budget execution by programme for the FY 2022123.
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Chart 7: Budget execution (KSh' Billions)
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TheNationalTreasuryregisteredKeyAchievementsduringtheFinancialYear2022123.These
include:
l. Under General Administration, Planning and Support. S.ervices programme, the National

Treasury leased 4,023 security vehicles f6r the Nitional Police Service towards enhancing

security;

UnderthePublicFinancialManagementprogramme,.theNationalTreasurymobilizeda
[Lf 

"f 
fiifr. iZ.6 Uittio, worth of pr-ivate capital under Pub-lic-Private Partnerships; mobilized

iiii.i.i [iiii", under the Global Fund towards treatrnent of HIV, TB and Malaria, registered

29,435 AGPO Enterprises; and digitized an additional 4'687 government services; and

conducted 269 Value for Money Audits;

2
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3. Under Economic and Financial Policy Formulation and Management programme, the
National Treasury implemented fiscal consolidation initialives that led to realization of 5.7 yo

fiscal deficit against a target of 6.3%o of GDP; developed the Nairobi Intemational Financial
Centre Q.IIFC) Guidelines and Regulations; established Climate Change Fund (CCF) in 7
Counties; and provided 197,960 No. of Clients with Agricultural Finance Corporation (A,FC)
loans in both wholesale and retail lending against a target of 196,61 7; and,

4. Under Market Competition and Creation of an Enabling Business Enyironment
programme, the National Treasury through Competition Authority of Kenya determined
l00o/o merger and acquisitions applications and developed one (l) Restrictive Trade Practices
Cuideline and one (l) Consumer Protection Guideline.

Emergiog Issues

The emerging issues that impacted or may impacted the operations of the National Treasury
include:

(i) The Ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict, land lingering effects of the COVID-19 pandemic
and drought has heightened global inflation and resulted in tightening monetary policy and
persistent supply chain disruptions. This hampered achievement of targets for the period
under review;

(ii) Technological advancement in the ICT sector presented opportunities to leverage ICT
innovations in the conduct of business as well as risks relating to governanc€ and data
security;

(iii) The proliferation of fake news on social media platforms, which have a wider audience
and faster response time sometimes portrayed the National Treasury in a negative manner;
and,

(iv) Development of Sector specific Project Appraisal Manuals: although lhe National
Treasury developed a generic manual to guide the investment appraisal processes, it has
now emerged that there is need to develop sector specific methodological appraisal
manuals to guide sector specific analysis. Therefore, the National rreasury is required to
develop over 40 sector specific appraisal manuals to guide the over 40 sectors on the
nuanced appraisal process.

Challenges
Some of the challenges the National rreasury faced while implcmenting the 2022/23 budget
include:-

(i) Resource Constraint coDtinues to persist and affects implementation ofbudgets
The rationalization of the budget, occasioned by underperformance of revenue colliction and
emerging govemment priorities affected the implementation of programmes on training,
hospitality, transfer of conditional grants to county Govemments and to semi-autonomous
Agencies (SAGAs). The underperformance in revenue also caused delays in disbursement of
funds by the National rreasury to MCDAS. The underperformance of countlr govemments own
source revenue led to overreliance on transfers from the National Government occasioning more
pressure on the exchequer.
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Shortage of Key Technical Staffcontinues to affect operational efficiency in core mandate

Despite recruitment of staff across certain cadres, the National Treasury continues to experience
sta{f shortage across all cadres against authorized establishment. As indicated in the operational
performance on human resourse, the current staffcapacity is at 58%. This is mainly attributed to
natural attrition. The planned recruitment and promotion of staffby the appointing authorities
has been slow hence affecting service delivery and succession management initiatives.

(ii) Operating environment is manifested, among others, by shortage ofoffice space especially
for key tcchnical staffand, inadequate resourcing ofthe Monitoring and Evaluation function.

To manage the above emerging issues and challenges and ensure successful implementation of
the National Treasury goals and objectives, the Ministry undertook the following: -

(a) Continued to implement bonowing policy that provides for domestic borrowing to plug the
financing gap created by non-performing revenue;

(b) The effects of the Eastern Europe Conflict on inflation and cost of living werc moderated by
the Govemment's interventions including among others, making fertilizer available and
improve productivity in counties and regions that plant in the short rain season, where the
Govemment imported I .5 million 50 kg bags of fertilizers and distributed them at a lowcr cost
ofKsh 3,500;

(c) Continued to implement succession planning towards progressively filling in staffshortage,
continued training and timely promotions. As at the end of the Financial Yeat 2022123, the
National Treasury had enhanced its staff capacity to 80oZ of aurhorized establishment from
30oZ in the Financial Year 2020/21; and,

(d) Engaged other development partners for concessional loans and grants as well as pursued

strategies to finance governmenl projects.

Recommendations

(D There is need for increasing allocation to the National Treasury to facilitate effective
mobilization of resources to finance public expenditure particularly towards facilitation
and implementation of post COVID-I9 Economic Recovery Strategy and emerging
Government priorities;

(iD Reforms in Public Financial Management ard taxation shall be sustained to enable the

National Treasury to mobilize adequate financial resources and enhance absorption

capacity;

(iii) Continued sustained implementation of succession planning, especially with respect to
recruitment of key technical staff to achieve optimal staffing levels for enhanced

operational efficiencY;

Strengthening Monitoring-and Evaluation Framework and capacity;

Continued leveraging on ICT to ensure timely delivery oftargets; and,

Implementing the project rationalization to achieve optimal project portfolio and increase

fiscal space' 
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Going forward, the National ryasury will continue to implement fiscal policies that pursue
growth fricndly fiscal consolidation to prescrve debt sustainability. This will'be achieved tlirough
enhancing revenuc collcction and curtailing non-core expendiruris whilc prioritizing f,ign-i.pi"ttri"] 

-*! 
investrncnt expcnditure. As l:!I,:*] deficii is projected to d'ecline rroi., i".z p".I".,

of GDP in FY 2022123 to 4.4 percent of GDp inFy 20Bf2i.

l

2Signature
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6. STATEMENT OF PER-FORMANCE AGAINST PREDITERMINED OBJECTIYES

FOR THE FY 2022123

Inlroduction
i;";i;8i (, (f of the Public Finance Management Act' 2012 requires that' at the end- of €ach

n""""iri Vi"i,'r'lre accounting offl"tt *h"n lreparing financial statements of each National

Government National Treasury in accordance wit'h the standards and formals prescribed by the

pruri. i."o, Accounting Standards Board includes a statement of the national govemment

entitv,s performance against predetermined objectives. The key development objectives of the

Narional Treasury's 2018-2022 Strategic Plan are to:

Strengthen organization capacily for quality service delivery;

Enhance mobiLation, illocation and utilization of public resources;

f"rrr.."Ul" -a sustainable macro-economic environment; and'

E'"rrr" i.rt" structures that encourage competition and orderly conduct of business;

prrloress on Attainment of Strategic Development Objectives
.'"b'--- -- _-

For purposes of implementrng -a los"uaing t'he above divelopment obiectives 1o specific seclors'

"fl 
ti" i"r"f"p.ent oUle.tlws-"ere made specific' measurable' achievable' realistic and time-

;;u; (iiliiit and converted inio a"u.topnl"nt outcomes. Attendant indicators were identified

forreasonsoftrackingprogressandperformancemeasurement:Belowweprovidetheprogresson
attaining the stated objectives:

a)
b)
c)
d)

Table l: Performance agains t Predetermined Objectives for 2022123
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CommanG
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7. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Report on Operational and Performance financial performance ofthe organization for tbe
last three-to-fi ve-year period

Operational Performance

Operational performance is examined from three main indicators. These are: (i) Performance
Contract Managemenl (ii) Effectiveness in implementation of National Treasury Strategic Plan
2018/19-2022n3, and (iii) Human Resource Staff Capacity.

Performance Contract Management

Ahhough the Ministries have been completing lhe performance contracting cycle that ends with
announcement of results by the Ministry responsibie for Public Service, announcement of results
have not been undertaken except for the two FYs (FY 201912020 and 2020t2021).

In the Financial Year 20l,9/2020, the National Treasury and Economic Planning was ranked as the
best performing Ministry with a Composite Score of 3.0209. This meaas that TNT&P achieved
but not fully all its set PC targets resulting to a score of between 'r.0 - 100% which translates to
Good Pcrformance.

In the Financial Year 2020/ 21, the Nalional Treasury and Planning was ranked 5s in the Top Five
Performing Ministries with an Average Composite Score of 3.2124 which is a good performance.
There was a decline in performance compared to that of 20192020 whereby TNT&p was ranked
the best performing Ministry with a Composite Score of 3.0209. A summary of performance
contract ranking is given in table 2 below.

Table 2: Summary of performance of the National Treasury and Economic planning in
rankin of Ministries De artmetrts and cies over three Financial Years

Effectiveness in implementation of Strategic Pl an 2018-2023

The National rreasury implemented irs strategic plan under four (4) Key Result Areas (KRAs)
namely: (i) Stable Macro Economic Environment, (ii) Resource Mobilisation for financing public
expenditure, (iii) Development planning, budgeting and intergovernmental relations and (iv)
lnstitutional efficiency and effectiveness.

Effectiveness measures considered achievement of planned outcomes and outputs against set
targets. In this regard the National rreasury achieved overall effectivenesJ level of 73%

20t8t19 2019t2020 2020/2021
Ministries were not ranked Overall Score: 3.0209

Overall Rank: Position I
Overall Grade: 70-100%
Performarce category: Good
Core Mandate Score: 1.8089
Core Mandate Rank: Position 3

Overall Score: 3.2124 Overall
Rank: Position 5

Overall Grade: 70-100%
Performance category: Cood
Core Mandate Score: Not
measured
Core Mandate Rank: Not ranked
among the 5 besl performing
Ministries
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Chart 8:JIuman resource caPacity for.t-he,period 20l8ll9 to 2022t23

Trend in TNT human resource capacity

implementation of the objectives under the four KRAs On the Key Result Areas' the National

ir;;;t recorded the following level of effectiveness: Stable and sustainable

macroeconomic environment - 90%; Resource mobilization for financing public expenditure

realisedT4yo;Developmentplanning,budgeting,andintergovernmentalrelations'80%;and
ir,riiir,i"r"f efhciency and effictiveneis - 29o/o. KRA 4: Institutional efficiency and effectiveness

;;;;"J lowest levei of effectiveness in achievement of set objeclives' This is attributed to

inadequate resources to effectively implement targets'

Human Resource Staff CaPacitY

Human resource capacity is a component of operational efficiency in the National Treasury' In

,ii, ."g"rO, the Nationai Treasury cunently operates at 58 per cent staff capacity in relation to

arthorized 
'estuUlishment. 

This ii a decline fiom staff operational capacity of 656 percent in

i6iilis. Tl,. decline in staff capacrty is anribured ro slow succession management in relation ro

in"r.rsing staff requirement as indicated by authorized establishment Chart 8 below illustrates

the curreit staff capacity against authorised establishment'
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Chart 9: The National Treasury staff composition by techtrical and support cadre
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over the last five-year period, the National rreasury recorded mixed trend in performance in
financial stewardship relating to absorption ofGoK funds and externally funded resources as well
as in A-in-A. Charts 10, I I and l2 below indicate the specific performance in the menlioned
areas.

chart 10: The National rreasury total budget against expenditure for z0lgllg- 2o2ztz3
(KSh. Billions

TNT Total budget against expenditure (NSh. Billion) fot 2O1,Bl tg-
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Overall budget execution for the National Treasury for the period ZOlSllg- ZOZZD3
Chart l0 illustmtes the National Treasury financial performance in relation to expenditure for the
period 2018/19- 2022123. The allocations to the National Treasury recorded increasing trend with
highest allocations recorded in the FY 202l nz. The increase in allocation in the F'\l 2021D2 is
attributed lo transferring of marine and transport functions to the National rreasury. The same
functions have since been transferred back to the Ministry of Transport and infrastructure in the
FY 2023D4.
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Performance of GoK funded resources for the period 2018179-2022123

An analysis of budget performance for the National Treasury for the period 2018119 to 2q?.2/23

for CoK funded ,"rouri.s indicate increasing allocation over time. The highest allocation of KSh.

I12. billion was recorded in the FY 2021/22. This was due to transfer of marine and transporl

functions to the National Treasury by executive order. There was a decljne in allocatlons in FY

22123 when the same functions were transferred back to the Ministry of Transport and

lnfrastructure. The performance ofGoK funded resources is shown in Chart 1l'

Chart 11: Performance of GoK funded resources for the period 2018/19-2022/23 (KSh.
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GoK budget execution over time
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Performance of exlernally funded resources for the period 2018179-2022123

The extemally funded resources rose sharply in the FY 2020121 before gradually decreasing in the

,uUr"qu"n, y"u.s. The rise was due to mobilization of additional lesources to combat the COVID

ls-p-a"ri". Chart l2 highlights the performance of extemally funded resources for the period

2018/19- 2022/23.

Chart12:theperformanceofexternallyfundedresourcesfortheperiod20lS/19-
2022l23(KSh.Billions)
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Performance of Appropriation io Aid the period 2018119-2022123

The National Treasury registered a sharp rise in A-in-A allocations in the FY yer 2020121. The
rise in A-in-A relates to development partner financing towards interventions to combat COVID
l9 pandemic as well as the transfer of the rail transport function 1o the National Treasury. Chart
l3 below illustrates the trend in the performance of A-in-A for the period 2018/19 to 2022123.

Chart 13: Performance of A-in-A for the period 2018119-202217,3 Q<Sh-
Billions)
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Tbe National Treasury Key Projects/ Investments implemented or ongoing indicating source
ofFunds, Project Status, Project Costs and amount spent so far

The Table below indicates a summary of l3 key projects for the National Treasury indicating
project cost, source of funds, cumulative expenditure 1o date and project status

Table 3: K ro ects im Iemented the National Treasu
S/No. Projcct Nrm. Pro.i.rt
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l3

Future Developments and other information

l"ii"'*rrnr. tS) Year period, ihe National Treasury is planning to implement key policies and

strategies as follows:

Stable and sustainable macroeconomic environment

Under this Key Result Are4 the National Treasury plans to:

(i) Develop and. implement macroeconomjc and fiscal policies that support stable

macroeconomlc envlron;ent and stimulate economic recovery to 5 6 percent growth- in

FY 2027128; boost the iuiio of gtot' national savings to GDP to 13 3 percent in the FY

2021128;increasetheratioofn-ationalinvestmentsto18'6percentofGDPintheFY
2027t28;

(ii) Oversee implementation of monetary policy that targets to maintain inflation rate at 5

J"r""nt *l-i.S percent; low -a st'ti" lending interest rates; stable and competitive

e*"h*g" rates; and strong ollicial foreigrr exchange reserves;

Develop and implement tax policy and administrative measures designed to gradua)ly

IJr." if," f"*f deficit including gi'nt' to 3 5 percent of^GDP in the FY 2027128 increase

revenue collection to 1g.5 perce"ni of GDp in'FY 2027128; and reduce total expenditures

and net lending to 22.3 percenlas a share ofGDP in the FY 20211281'

(iii)
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(ir) Establish the Kenya Credit Guarantee Company lo administer CGS - This will entail
establishing a functional Credit Guarantee Company to administer Credit Guarantee
Scheme (CGS);

(u) Agricultural and Rural Financial Inclusion (RK- FINFA) - this will enharce access,
efficiency and stability of agricultural and rural finance by smallholder farmers and
agribusiness MSME; and,

(vi) Implement the Green Financial Markets programme to enhance access to green finance
and strengthen the enabling environment to attract green finance and investments needed
to transition to a low-carbon, climate resilient and green economy.

Resource mobilization for financing public expenditure

Under this Key Result Are4 the National Treasury plals ro:

(i) lntegrate Meridian Debt Management System with IFMIS- Development of integration
solutions and training officers with new syslem and with cBK DHow central Securiries
Depository (CSD) Sysrem- Development of integration Solutions aad uploading of
Domestic Debts in the system;

(ii) Develop a Resource Mobilization Strategy;

(iji) Review the Debt and Borrowing Policy to capture the emerging issues and changes in the
operational environment; and,

(iv) Implement the digitalizarion of Govemment services through the Digital payments by
enhancing the capabilities and scope ofthe eCitizen payment platform.

Development Planning, budgeting and intergovernmental relations

This Key Result area aims to undertake the following:

(i) Business process automation to improve efficiency in National Treasury operations;

(ii) Digitalization and digitization of Govemment process for effective service delivery and,
revenue enhancement;

(a) Strengthening the intemal audit fiduciary assurance and advisory services for effective
govemance process, intemal control strucfures and risk management to increase the level
of transparency, effectiveness, efficiency, economy and accountability;

(b) Development and implementation of the public Finance Management Reforms Strategy
2023-2028;

(c) Enhancing pafticipation of marginalized groups in public procurement by registration and
capacity building;

(d) operationalize the Treasury Single Account to ensure efficient distribution of cash
balances; and,

(e) Upgrading and integration of pension Management Information System for effective and
efficient processing and payment of pension benefits.
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Institutional Effi ciency and Effectiveness

Under this Key Result Area; the National Treasury will implement the following:

Undertake Value for MoneY Audits;

lnstallation of Visitorc' management system and Integrated Security Management System
ll.

Ill.

lv.

vl.

at the National Treasury;

Development of a Disaster Recovery Plan;

Enhance the work environment for efficient service delivery;

rmDlement succession planning towards enhancing staff capacity to g0% of the authorized

establishment by June 2OZ7 -Oii" '",i" 
oi t."hni-cal to support from 65 per cent to 70 per

Yu

cent bY the same Period;

Finalization of the Govemment Transport Policy and Scaling up of the govemment motor

vehicle leasing Programme; and'

Finalization ofthe development ofthe e-GP system'
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8. ENVIRONMENTAI AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

The National rreasury's mandate is to formurate, imprement and monitor prudent economic andfinancial policies at national and county revers of government. The core values incrude
customer,/Citizen first, derivering rerevant goods and services, and improving oi"r",ionur
excellence. Guided by the above principles, wgundertake the following: - '

Sustainability Strategy and profi le

To ensure economic sustainabiriry^, the N-ationar rreasury put in prace several measures geared
towards protecting the economy. Some ofthe key focus lni"*"ntions are to: reduce the Jost ofliving; create jobs; achieve more equitabre distrib;tion of income; enhance sociar security; expandtax base for more revenue for financing deveropment; and increase foreign exchange a""irirgr.

The economic performance for the period under review is against a background of increased
uncertainties in the grobar economic outrook, continuing geoforiticar t.nrro"n, una ri" f""" ormonetary policy tightening amidst concerns about financial'sector stability in tf," 

".i*n""6economies. Nevertheless, commodity prices in the global markets, particur"riy or oit ana 
-rooa,

have been easing due to improved and functioning sulply chains.

Kenya's economic growth for.2022 srowed down to 4.g percent from 7.6 percent in 202r due tothe adverse impact of the murtipie shocks that affected th" ."oro.y. The growth in 2022 wassupported by growth in the services sectors while the agriculturat .""to, 
"ontr"".t"d 

ro, J" r"*naconsecutive. year due to the prolonged drought effect 
-which 

also contributed ro a sto*aorrn ingroMhs in the manufacturing as we[ as that of the wholesare and retair trade sectors.

In 2023, the economy is expected to r€bound and expand by 5.5 percent from 4.g percenr in 2022and maintain rhat pace over the medium rerm. Thii growti wiri be supporred uy 
" 

t.""J-i^.aprivate sector led growth, including continued stron-g performance of the services sector andrecovery in the agriculture sector due to improved weatirer conditions during the March _ Mayrain season. This growth outrook will further be reinforced by the i-nterventions beingimplemenred by the Government, under rhe Bottom-Up Economi" irunrr"-",#'ig."d"(BETA).

]1 grd"l to rearize the aspirations of the Bottom-Up Economic Transformation Agenda, theNational rreasury wirr: continue to maintain macroeconomic stabirity and enhance security Iofoster a secure and conducive business environment foi 
^ll K"ny"n, ;J;;;;;;;*",Intensi! nationar infrastructure deveropment and connectivity in roais, *ir, p"n, ."..gy unl'nur.optic infrastructure ro rower the cost of movement of peopre and goods, Io*e, rhe 

"Ji, "i 
a"irgbusiness thcreby 

.enhancing profitabiriry of businessei; 
-Eilun"" 

rnvesrmenr in key economicsectors for broad based sustainabre economic recovery by pro.oting, agricurturar transformation,growth in. manufacturing, environmental conservation _i *r,., suppiy, food securiry, climalechange mitigation and adaptation, tourism recovery, anJ sustainabre i";; ,* -J;;iug"r*r.Food security and crimare change wi, arso become a focar point for poricy g"rrg io.*l?i-irr"National rreasyr.r wiI expand access. lo quatiry so.iai 'services in hearrh, educarion andappropriate social safety nets for the v_ulnerable population; and support rfr. y"r,f, *"r"" -Opersons living with disabiriry through Government-funaea 
"rrpo*.r,n.n, programs that leverageon partnerships with private sector organizations.
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Environmenlal performance/climate change/mitigation of natural Disaster

The National Treasury has constituted a committee comprising officers from the key Departments

oi,rr. viriury to oversee all matters relating to environmental sustainability. The committee has

sinl" a.r.top"a a ministerial policy on the si=me in lrne with the National Policy on environmental

,"^"g"r"ri -a participated in planting trees thus contribuling towards the l0 percent tree cover

initiative. Additionally, to ensure a cinducive work environment' the National Treasury has

contracted a company 10 manage cleaning and waste disposal services'

Employee welfare
irp'rov"" *"rr"re is critical for effective implementation of the programmes and projects of an

orcanization. Noring the importance of human resources' the National Treasury has a department

;ri;it;;;;" ;;;T."Hrrun R.rorr"es Management and Development. The Ministry I*."1.o
establishedaHumanResourceManagementndui'oryCommitteeandDepartmenlalTraining
a;;;;;""r rhar processes all the prom-otions, discipline, training, appraisal and general employee

."n.i, i" line with the Public iervice guidelinei and procedures. Recruitment of ofllcers is

griJ"a Uv tl'," pri"ciples ofthe public service such as inclusivity among others'

Inaddition,acommitteeonoccupationalsafetyandhealth.hasbeenestablishedtofollowupofthe
,"f"ty *ri;t;o", in the work place' In order to attract ard retain competent officers' the National

i;;;;'";;;.ted capacity building for the staff in _various 
technical subjects and recruited

oil""rr,ar,r',. *try grade to fill skills gaps and enhance human resource capacity

;;;;;;rh" ;tri"*'plriod, we implementld succession management plan by declaring vacant posts

io i.'nLr.a by the public Service commission al the higher levels. This is in preparation for the

existsanticipatedinthenexttwoyearsarisingfrom.retirementofofllcerswhowillhaveattained
themandatoryretirementage.Furthe',theN-ationalTreasuryhascontinuedtobuildthecapaciry
;;,h.;;li"; staff appra'isal ,'nugtnl"nt system in collaboration with the Public Service

Commission to ensure seamless implementation of the system'

Operational Practices/Market place practices 
-

d" N"tional Treasury is responiible for promoting fair trade practices in the economy. To ensure

"filiir" 
*pflrenta;ion olthis function assigned by the conslitution, one of the programmes

irpi"."nr"d by the Treasury is ensuring thatlxisting market structures encourage competition

-i "iJ.ify 
conduct of business in ordei to s'pport high productivity and c'mpetitive markets'

This is undertaken mainly by the Competition Authority of Keny4 a State Corporation under the

National Treasury.

Further, 1o ensure fairness in the allocation of procurement contracts' the National Treasury

ensures strict adherence to the provisions of the Public Procurement and Assets Disposal Act and

its regulations.

CommunitY Engagements
f-o*uia, Corpo.uieiocial responsibility, members of staff.&om the National Treasury participated

in these years Annual Kaptagat tree iiantlng exercise wh.ich was graced by His Excellency the

p;;;i;;;i 
", I,r Juiy, 202i in Elgeyo tttur"L*.t. The two-day exercise saw over 30,000 seedlings

;i;;i;;;, Kessup iorest Station by lhe Narional Treasury sraff, corporates and members ofthe

communitY.

To mitigate technological hazards, terrorism' fire and natural disasters' the National Treasury

"rg"gJ"" 
pr"f"rsionai security seryices-firm. contracted for purposes of enhancing security in the

Mil;rl ihe National TreJury continued to improve secunty within the building and is

environs by use of CCTV cameias installed at the Treasury Building and at the entrances and

.^i"oiiJ nr.nghting facilities at rhe premises in collaboration with the state Department for

Public Works.
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9. RXPORT OF THE FTJND MANAGEMENT

The Management submits the financial report for the year ended June 30, 2023, which show the
state ofthe Fund's affairs.

a) Principal activities

The principal activity of the fund is to provide funds for development of common facilities for the
distribution or testing ofoil products and matters relating to the development ofoil industry and
the stabilization ofoil prices.

b) Results

The results ofthe entity for the year ended June 30, 2023, are set out on page

I to 18

c) Auditors

fie Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Fund in accordance with Article
229 of the Constitution of Kcnya and thc Public Audit Act 201 5.

By Order of the Management of the Fund

t

Dr. Chris Kip CBS.

Principal Secretary

George IC Gichuru
ICPAK Member No. 9262
IIead of Accounting Unit
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IO. OVERVIEW OF TTIE PETROLELTM DE\TELOPMENT LEVY FUND

10.1 Background of the Fund

ThePetroleumDevelopmentLevyFundwasestab|ishedundersectiona(l)ofPetroleum
DevelopmentFundActlggl'Theobjectivesandpurposeofthefundistoprovidefundsfor
develoiment of common facilities for the distribution or testing of oil products and maners

relating to the development of oil industry provided the funds are not used for purposes in

competition with the Private Sector.

pursuant to the Petroleum Development Fund Act, .I991, the cabinet Secretary published the

Petroleum Development Levy Order,2020 LECAL NOTICE No l24 on l0 July 2020' revoking

the petroleum Development Order, 1992'

The regulatory objective and justification ofthe Levy Order is to provide sufficient funds for the

development ofthe petroleum sector including the stabilization ofpetroleum pump prices in

inst",".,ofspikesoccasionedbyhighlandedcostsaboveathresholdtobedeterminedbythe
Energy and Petroleum Regulatory Authority (EPRA) The Levy Order will ensure gro*h of the

P"t otlm Development Fund thereby enabling achievement ofthe following:

(i) Creation ofa stabilization mechanism for petroleum pump prices to cushion

consumers from spikes in the landed costs'

(ii)Enhancementofcapacitybuildinginthepetroleumsupplychaintherebycreating
stability in suPPlY

Theexpenditurefromthefundisonthebasisandlimitedtotheannualbudgetwhichshallbe
submittedtotheNationalTreasuryforapprovalbeforebeginningoftheFinancialYeartowhich
the budget relates.

The pDL holding Account is held at the central Bank ofKenya and is operated and maintained by

the National t*usr.y. The funds are released to the Implementing Ministries - Ministry of

Petroleum, Transport & lnfrastructure and Energy on request'

Inlinewithsection8lofthePublicFinancialManagementAcl2o|2,theNationalTreasuryis
required to not later than three months after the end of each financial year, prepare and submit to

the Auditor-General Financjal Statements for that year in respect of the holding account' This

report therefore covers the operations ofthe Petroleum Development Levy Fund Holding Account

for the financial year ended 30s June 2023'

10.2 Administration of the Fund

ThePrincipalSecretary,TheNationalTreasuryastheAdministratoroftheFundoranyperson
appointed ty him in writing for that purpose is required to Prepare the Financial Statements ofthe

f*a,prrrrrnrsection8lofthePublicFinancialManagementAct20l2Fundsaretransferred
fromtheNationalTreasuryHoldingAccounttotheoperationaccounts,oftheStateDepartments
of Pefoleum and Ministry of EnergY'
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All receipts, savings and accruals of the Fund and the balance of the Fund at the close ofeach
financial year shall not be paid lo the Consolidated Fund, but shall be retained for the purpose for
which the Fund is established.

10.3. Financial reporting arrangement for the Fund Account

The Principal Secretaries of Ministry of Petroleum and Mining, Ministry of Energy and State

Department for Infrastructure are required to account for the funds transferred from the holding
account to their operations account, and prepare the Financial Statements ofthe Fund, pursuant

section 8l (4) of the Public Financial Management Act2012.

10,4. Commentary on the financial statements ofthe fund

At closure of the Financial Y ear 2021-2022, the balance in the Petroleum Development Levy
Fund Holding Account was Kshs. 3,550152,014 and the accumulated Fund Balances as at 30tr,

June 7023 amounted to KShs.3J91,339,025 The total receipts for rhe Financial Year 2022-2023
totaled KShs. 25,440215,583 and toral disbursements lo the State Departments of Energy and
Petroleum amounted to KShs. 25399,128,572.

The total receipts for the Financial Y ear 2022-2023 of KShs. 25,440,215,593 comprised of KShs.
25,227,796)29 received from Kenya Revenue Aurhoriry, KShs. 10,537,011 unspent balance for
the financial year 202'l-2022, received flom Minisrry of Energy and KShs.201,882,243 received
from State Department of Petroleum & Mining.

The approved/revised estimates for the financial year 2022-2023 was KShs. ZS3lgg,lZg,S7Z

againsr actual collections from Kenya Revenue Authority of KShs. 25J27,796,329 resulting ro

under collections of KShs. 1713322,43. The under collection is due to decrease in petrol sales

volumes.
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11. STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 84 (l) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires that, at the end of each

financial y")r, tn" Administrator of the Fund established under section 4 (1) of Petroleum

O"u.topr.nt iund Act l99l shall prepare financial statements for the Fund in accordance with the

standards and formats prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting standards Board.

The Administrator of the Fund is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Fund's

financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Fund for and as at

ihe end of the financial yeai ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i)maintaining

adequate financial manigement arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective

tf,rorgl,out the reporting period, (ii) maintaining proper accounting records' which disclose with

reasofable accuracy at u,i ri." the financial position ofthe fund, (iii)Designing, implementing and

,"int"ining intemal conirols relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial

statem.ntslard ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or

fraud, (iv)'safeguarding the asseti of the fund; (v)Selecting and applying appropriate accounting

policiei, und 1ui;Uut<;r,g accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances'

The Administrator of the Fund accepts responsibiliry for the Fund's financial statements, which

huu" b""n prepared using appropriaie accounting policies.supported by reasonable and prudent

j;;;;;;rt';; estimatei, in'conformity with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards

ip5eSl, and in the manner required by the PFM- Act, 2Ol2 and section a (l) of Petroleum

blr"ropr*, Fund Act 1991. The Administrator of the Fund is of the opinion that the Fund's

financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Fund's transactions during the financial

year ended June 30, Z0Zl, and ofthe Fund's financial position as at that date'

The Administrator further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the

rr"a, *rr"n have been relied upon in the preparation ofthe Fund's financial statements as well as

,rrl 
"a"qu".v 

of the systems of internal financial control. In preparing the financial statements, the

Rdn1inirtr"to, ofthe iund has assessed the Fund's ability to continue as a going concem.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Administrator to indicate that the Fund will not remain a

going c-oncern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement'

Approval of the Financial Statements

The Financial State approved by on 2023

George K. Gichuru
ICPAK Member No. 9262

Head of Accounting Unit

I,,
L

Dr. Ch ns ptoo, CBS

Principal SecretarY
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENENAL

E n ha n< i n g A c L' ou n t a bi I itt

HEADqUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box loo84-ooroo
NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITORGENERAL ON PETROLEUM DEVELOPMENT LEVY
FUND (HOLDING ACCOUNT) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023 - THE
NATIONAL TREASURY

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are latly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Acl, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Petroleum Development Levy
Fund (Holding Account) set out on pages 1 to 18, which comprise of the statement of

Report of the Auditor-General on Pelroleum Development Levy Fund (Holding Accomt) lor the year ended

30 June, 2023 - The Nalional Treasury-



financial assets as at 30 June, 2023 and the statement of receipts and payments,
statement of cash flows, statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya
and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, the financial position of the
Petroleum Development Levy Fund (Holding Account) as at 30 June, 2023, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Cash Basis) and comply with the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards of Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Petroleum Development Levy Fund
(Holding Account) Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have
fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with ISSAI and in acmrdance with
other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources were not applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements, plan, and perform the audit to obtain assurance about
whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that govem
them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my conclusion.

Report o/ the Audilor-General on Petroleum Development Levy Fund (Holding Account) for the year ended
30 June, 2023 - The Nationol Treosury
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REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The auditwas conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Cash
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities, which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Report of the Auditor-General on Pecoleum Development Lery Fund (Holding Account) for the year ended
30 June, 2023 - The Nqtionql Treasury
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Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229 (7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Report of the Audilor-General on Petroleum Development Lety Fund (Holding Account) for the year ended
30 June, 202 3 - The National Treasury
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue
to sustain its services.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the dlsclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA e BS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Na irobi

07 December, 2023

Reporl of lhe Auditor-Cenarql on Petroleum Developnent Levy Fund (Holding Account) for the year ended
30 June, 2023 - The Norional Treasury

5



The Nolionol Treosury

Petroleum DeveloPmenl
Annuol RePorls & Finonc

LeYy tund
iol slolemenls loI lhe Yeor ended 3oth June 2023

13. STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH

JUNE 2023

Note 2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Receipts- Non-Exchange Transactions

Transfers fiom other Government 6 25,440,215,583 26,219,272'502
Entities

Total Receipts 2s,440,21s,s83 26279,272,s02

Payments

Transfers to MDAs

Total Payments

SurpluslDeficit for the Year

Remission to Treasury

Net Deficit/SurPlus for the Year

The notes set out on pages 5 to l6 form an

The finarcial slatements were approved on

2s,399,128,s72 26,109,406,330

2s)99,,12E,s72 26,109'406p30

4 I ,087,01 I t69,866,172

169,866,172

't

Dr. Chris too, CB

41,087,01I

integral of these fi nancial statements.

by:

George K. Gichuru
ICPAX Member No. 9262

Head of Accounting Unit

p

t

I tt

PrinciPal SecretarY
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14. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AS AT 3OTH JUNE 2023

Note 2027-2023 2021-7022

Kshs Kshs

Assets - Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 3,591,339,025 3,s50,252,014

Total Financial Assets 3,s91,339,02s 3,ss02s2,014

Net Financial Assets 3,s91J39,02s 3,sso2s2,0r4

Accumulated Surplus 3,59t,339,02s 3,550,252,014

Total Net Financial Assets 3,s91,339,025 3,ss0rs2,0r4

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements form an integral part
of the fi nancial statements.
The entity financial srarements were approved onlC{_2023 and signed by:

Dr. ris Ki . CBS.

Principal Secretary

George IC Gichuru
ICPAK Member No. 9262
Head of Accounting Unit
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15. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR TIIE YEAR EN'DED 3OTH JUNE 2023'

Notes 2022-2023 2071-2022

Kshs Kshs

Cash flows from Operating Activities

Receipts

Transfers from Other Govemment 6 25,440,215,583 26,279,217'502

Entities

Total ReceiPts 25,440,215,583 26,219,272'507

Payments

Transfers to Govemment Agencles 7 25,399,128,572 26,109,406'330

Total Payments 25,399,128,572 26,109,406'330

Net cash flows from OPera ting 9
Activities

Net Increase in Casb & Equivalents

Cash & Equivalents at l'r JulY,2022

Cash & Equivalents at 30th June,2023

41,087,01r

41,087,011

169,866,172

169,866,112

8 3,550,252,014 3,380,385,842

I

8 3,s91"339,025 3,550'252'014

George K. Gichuru
ICPAK Member No. 9262

Head of Accounting Unit
Dr. rls ptoo, CBS.

3
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16. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BT,IDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR TTIE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023.

Original budget Adjustments Final budget
Actual on

comparable basis
Veriance

Revenue Kshs IGhs Kshs Ks hs Kshs

Transfers from KRA./MDAs 25,624,t28,572 -225,000,000 25,399,128,572 25,440,215,583 41,087,01 I

Total Revenue 2s,624.,r28,572 -22s,000,000 25,399,128,572 25,440,215,583 41,087,01 i
Expenses

Transfers to Agencies 25,624,128,572 -225,000,000 25,399,128,572 25,399,t28,572 t00%

Total expenditure 25,624,12E.572 -225,000,000 25,399.,72E,572 25,399,,128,572

Net Su rplus 41,087,0 r I

Budget notes

- The original budget was Kshs. 25,624,128,572 and was reduced in the supplementary estimates

By Kshs. 225,000,000 resulting to the final budget ofKshs. 2',3gg,LZ8,S7Z.

-The actual collected receipt ofKshs. 75,440,215,583 comprises receipts from KRA ofKshs. 25,227,796,329 and receipts ofunspent balances from
Ministry of Energy Kshs.10,537,011 and State Department for Petroleum IG hs.201,6E2,243 for the Financial y ear Z02l lzO2|that was returned to
PDL holding Account during the financial year.
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17. NOTES TO TIM FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Note l: General Information

ThePelroleumDevelopmentLevyFundwasestablishedundersection4(1)ofPetro!eum

Development Fund Act 1991. The Objectives and purpose of the fund is to provide funds for

development of common facilities for the distribution or testing of oil products and matters relaling

to the development of oil industry provided the funds are not used for purposes in competition with

the Private Sector.

Note 2: Statement of Compliance and Basis ofPreparalion

Thefinancia|statementshavebeenpreparedinaccordancewithCash.basislnternationalPublic

SectorAccountingstandards(IPSAS)asprescribedbythePublicSectorAccountingStandards

Board (pSASB) which also requires management 10 exercise judgement in the process of applying

the petroleum Development Levy Fund's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of

judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial

statements, are disclosed in Note 5 ofthese financial statements'

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the

functional and reporting currency ofThe Petroleum Development Levy Fund

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act' and lntemational

public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been

consistently applied to all the years presented'

,{
dl{

:,-,$'.is
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The Notionol Treosury
Pelroleum Developmenl levy Fund - The Notionol lreosury
Annuol Reports & Finonciol Slolements lor lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023

Note 3: Adoption ofNew and Revised Standards

New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30 June

2023.

IPSASB deferred the application date of standards from l't January 2022 owing ro Covid 19. This

was done to provide entities with t'me to effectively apply the standards. The deferral was set for I't
January 2023.

New and amended slandards and interpretations in issue but not yet ellective in the year ended

30 June 2023.

Standard

IPSAS 4I:
Financial
lnstruments

IPSAS 42:
Social Benefits

Effective date and impact:

Applicable: I't January 2023:
The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial reporting of
financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and useful information to
users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and
uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.
IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful information
than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial
assets that considers the characteristics of the asset,s cash flows and the
objective for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is
applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing; and

. Applying an improvcd hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging
arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a strong link
between an Entity's risk management strategies and thc accounting
treatment for instruments held as part of the risk management strategy.

Tbe standard has no impact oo the entify.

Applicable: 15r January 2023
The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, fajthful
representativeness and comparability of the information th
provides in its financial statements about social benefi

at a reporting Entiry
ts. The information

6



The Notionol Treosury
Pelroleum DeveloPmenl
Annuol Reporls & tinonc

Standard

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from
IPSAS 41,

Financial
Instruments

improvements to

IPSAS

thero

l-evy tund - The Notionol
iol slolements tor lhe Yeo

Ireosury
r ended 30rh June 2023

Effective date and imPact:

provided should help users of the financia

fi nancial reports assess:

I statements and general-PurPose

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity'

(b) The key features ofthe operation ofthose social benefit schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Enlity's financ

performance, financial position and cash flows'

The standard has no impact on the entity'

a

Applicable: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedging

and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was

issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for

financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to updare the guidance on classifying financial

instrumentsoninitialadoptionofaccrualbasisIPSASwhichwereinadvertently
omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued'

The Standard has no impact on the entity'

Applicable 1't January 2023

. IPSAS 22 Disclosure of
Government Seclor-

Financial Information about the General

Amendments to refer to the latest System ofNational Accounts (SNA 2008)'

. IPSAS i9: EmploYee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social securily benefits as it is no longer defined

in IPSAS.

. IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from ls January 2023'

The standard has no impact on the entity

Applicable 1't January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement'

resentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and ]

IPSAS 43

7



The Notionol Treosury
Pelroleum Development Levy Fund - The Notlonol Treosury
Annuol Reporls & tinonciol Slolemenh lor the yeor ended 3oth June 2023.

IPSAS 44:
Non- Current
Assets Held for
Sale and

Discontinued
Operations

Applicable ln January 2025

The Standard requires,
Assets tlat meet the criteria to be classified as hcld for sale to be measured at the
lower of carrying amount and fair valuc less costs to sell and the depreciation of
such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria lo be classified as held for sale to be presented
separately in the statement of financial position and the rcsults of discontinued
operations to be presentcd separately in the statemcnt offinancial performance.
The stendard has no impact ou tbe entity.

Early adoption of staoderds

The entity did not early - adopt any new or amsnded standards in year 2022D023.

Standard Effective date and impact:

lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those

transactions. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to

assess the effect that lcases have on the financial position, financial performance

and cashflows ofan Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present information

on right ofuse assets and lease liabilities.

The Standard has no impact oE the entity.

8



The Notionol Treosury
Petroleum DeveloPmenl Levy fund - The Nolionol Treosury

Annuol Reporls & tinonciol Slolemenls lor the yeor ended 30'h June 2023'

Note 4: Signiticant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition- Transfers from other government entities

Revenues fi,om non-exchange transactions with other govemment entities are measured at fair

value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the

transfer is free from conditions and tt is probable that the economic benefits or service potential

related to the asset wi!l flow to the entity and can be measured reliably Recurrent grants are

recognized in the statement of comprehensive income DevelopmenVcapital grants are

recognized in the statement of financjal position and reaiised in the statement of comprehensive

income over the useful Iife ofthe assets that has been acquired using such funds'

b) Budget information

TheoriginalbudgetforFY2022.2023wasapprovedbytheNationalAssemblyinJune2022.
Subsequentrevisionsoradditionalappropriationsweremadetotheapprovedbudgetin
accordancewithspecificapprovalsfromtheappropriateauthorities.Theadditional
appropriationsareaddedtotheoriginalbudgetbytheentityuponreceivingtherespective
upprorul, in order to conclude the final budget The budget is prepared on the same basis as the

financial statements thus there are no need for a reconciliation statement-

c) Provisions

provisions are recognized when the Petroleum Development Levy Fund has a present obligation

(legal or construclive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources

emlodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a

reliable estimate can be made ofthe amount ofthe obligation'

Where the Fund expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed' for example' under an

insurancecontract,thereimbursementisrecognizedasaseparateassetonlywhenthe
reimbursementisvirtuallycertain.Theexpenserelatingtoanyprovisionispresentedinthe
statement offinancial performance net of any reimbursement'

d) Contingentliabilities

The Petroleum Development Levy Fund does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses

details of any contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an

outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote'

9



The Nolionol Treosury
Petroleum Developmenl levy fund - The Notionol Treosury
Annuol Reporls & Finonciol Slolements for lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2OZ3

e) Contingent assets

The Petroieum Development Levy Fund does not recognize a conlingent asset bul discloses
details of a possible assel whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events nol wholly within the control of the Fund in the notes to the
financial statemenls. Conlingent assets are assessed continually to ensure thal developmenl.s are

appropriately reflected in the financial statements. lf it has become virtually certain that an inflow
of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably,
the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which
the change occurs.

f) Nature and purpose of reserves

There is an accumulated surplus reserve that facilitates the core mandate ofthe entity.

g) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Petroleum Development Levy Fund recognizes lhe efreds of changes in accounting policy
retrospectively. Thc effec* of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if
retrospective appl ication is impractical.

h) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate ofexchange on the
date ofthe transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at
the statement of financiai position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that da1e.
Exchange differences arising liom the settlement ofcreditors, or from the reporting ofcreditors at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized
as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

i) Related parties

The Petroleum Development Levy Fund regards a related parry as a person or an entity with the
ability to exert control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity,
or vice versa. Members ofkey management are also regarded as related parties.

j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on cali
and highly Iiquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Bank account balances include amounts held at the central Bank of Kenya and at various
commercial banks at the end ofthe financial vear.

10



The Notionol Tleosury
Pelroleum Development [eYy Fund - The Nolionol Treosury

Annuol ReP orts & tinonciol Siotemenls for lhe yeor ended 30th June 2023

k) Com parative ftgures

where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation'

l) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Note 5: Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncert'inty

The preparation of the Fund's financial slatements in conformity with IPSAS requires manaBement to

make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues' expenses,

assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period'

However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a

material adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe asset or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assu mPtions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation unce(ainty at the

reporti;g date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

*s.t, 
"nd 

liabilities within the next financial yeaI, arc described below. The Entity based its

assumptions and estimates on palameters available when lhe consolidated financial statements were

pr"p"r"d. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change

dr. to .-k.t changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such changes are

reflected in the assumptions when they occur' IPSAS l l40

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

potential future use and value fiom disposal:

-The condition of the asset based on the assessment ofexperts employed

-The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in -technology and

processes.

-The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed'

-Availability offunding to replace the asset'

-Changes in the market in relation to the asset

I1



The Nolionol Treosury
Petroleum Development levy Fund - The Notionol Treosury
Annuol Reports & finonciol Slolemenls for lhe yeor ended 30th June 2023.

Note 6: Transfers from Other Government Entities

2022-2023 2021-2022

KshsKshs

Levy from KRA 25,227,796,329 26,132,322,347

146,9s0, t s510,537,01 I

201,882,243

MDAs: Minisry of Energy

Ministry of Petroleum & Mining

Total 25,440r15,583 26?79272,s02

Note 7: Transfers to Otber Goverument Agencies

2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Transfers to MDAs:

Ministry of Energy 2,833,000,000 2.333.000.000
Minist-y of Petroleum & Mining

- Proiects. 2,206,128,572 1,663,s28,57t

Stabilization of Oil Prices 20,360,000,000 22,112,877,7s9

Total 2s399,128572 26,r09,406J30

l2



The Nolionol Treosury
Pelroleum Developmenl Levy Fund - The Nolionol Treosury

Annuol Reporls & Finonciolstolemenls lor the yeor ended 30rh June 2023'

Note 8: Cash and Cash Equivalents

KShs

Total

See annex VI

Note 9: Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Surplus for Year 169,866,172

Net Cash from Operating Activities 41 ,087,01 I t69,866,172

Finlncial Risk I\'ta rra genrcnt

The Fund activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks and

effectsofchangesinforeigncurTency.Theentity,soverallriskmanagementprogrammefocuseson
unpredictabiliry of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the potential adverse

effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels ofrisk The entity does not hedge

anyrisksandhasinplacepoliciestoensurethatcreditisonlyextendedtocustomerswithan
established credit history'

TheFund'sfinancialriskmanagementobjectivesandpoliciesaredetailedbelow:

i) Credit risk
TheFundhasnoexposuretocreditrisk,whichistheriskthatacounterpartywillbeunableto
pay amounts in full when due. The amounts plesented in the statement offinancial position ale

nei of allor*an"es for doubtful receivables, estimated by the entity's management based on

prior experience and their assessment ofthe current economic environment'

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statemenls representing the

entity,s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of a:ry collateral

obtained is made uP as follows:

2021-70772027-2023

KShs

3,5 50,252,01 43,591 ,3 39,025Cash In Bank (CBK - A,/c100020502a)

3.5 50,252,0143,591,339,025

2027-202?2022-2013

KshsKshs

4 I ,087,01 I

13



The Nolionol Treosury
Pelroleum Developmenl Levy Fund -The Nolionol Treosury
Annuol Reports & Finonciol Stolements for the yeor ended 30rh June 2023

Total amount
Kshs

Performing
Kshs

Impaired
Kshs

At lune 2023

Bank balances 3,550,252,014 3,550,252,014

ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity's directors, who have

built an appropriate liquidity risk management fiamework for the management of the entity's
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The entity
manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

iiD Capital Risk Managemetrt

The objective of the entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the entity's ability to

continue as a going concern. The entity capital structure comprises ofthe following funds:

Gearing

Bank balances 3,s91 ,339,02s 3,591.339.025

At 30 June 2022

2022-2023 2027-2022

Kshs Kshs

Capital

Accumulated surplus 3,59 r,339,025 3,550,252,014

Total bonowings

Less: ca-sh and bark balances 3,550,252,0r43,591,339,02s

Net debt/(cash and cash equivalents)

0y" 0o/"

14
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Peiroleum Develo
Annuol Reporls &

pmenl Levy Fund - The Nolionol Treosury
tinonciol Stolemenls fol lhe yeot ended 30rh June 2023

Relaterl Party Oisciosu rcs

Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the entity include those parties who have ability to exercise

control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related parties

include management personnel, their associates and close family members'

Government of KenYa

The Govemment of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Petroleum Deve)opment Levy Fund,

holding 100% equity interest. The Govemment of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-

term lenders ofthe entity, both domestic and external'

Olher related parties include:

i) The Parent Ministry;

ii) Other SCs and SAGAs

iii) Key management;

Transactions with related Parties 2022-2023 20zt-2022 I

l-t

IKshs Kshs

Transfers from Other Govemment Entities

b) Key management compensation

Directors'emoluments

25,440,215,583

25.440,2t5,583 26.2',79,272,502Total

Compensation to keY management

a) Transfers from the Government

26,2't9,212,502

Total

Su rplus Remission

The fund does not remit funds to the consolidated fund'

Events after the RePortiDg Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting Period.

15



The Nolionol Treosury
Pelroleum Development Levy Fund - The Notionol Treosury
Annuol ieports & finonclol Slqlemenh for the yeor ended 3oth June 2023.

Ultimate and Ilolding Eutity
The entity is a Scmi- Autonomous Govcmmcnt Agcncy undcr thc National Treasury and Planning

Currcncy
The financial statcmcnts arc prescnted in Kcnya Shillings (Kshs).

16
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Pelroleum Development Levy Fund - The Nollonol Treosury
Annuol Reporls & Finonciol Stolemenlt tor the yeor ended 30rh June 2023.

I8. ANNEXES

Annex 1: Progress on Follow Up of Auditor Recommendations

Reference No. on the

external audit Report
Issue / Observations

from Auditor
Petroleum Development

Levy Fund
comments

Status:
(Resolved / Not

Resolved)

Timeframc:
(Pul a dale when you
expecl lhe issue lo be

resolved)

Report of the Auditor
General on Petroleum

Development Lely
Fund (Holding

Account) for the year

ended June 30, 2022

Unmodified Opinion

The Financial Statements
presented, presents fairly,
the F inancial Position of
the DPL Fund (Holding
Account) as at 30 June
2022 and of its financial
performance and its cash

flows for the year ended

in accordance with the

lnternational Public
Sector Accounting
Standards (accrual basis)
and comply with the

Public Finance
Management Act.20l2

There were no Audit
concerns/lssues with
Financial Statements

presented for the year

ended June 30,2022.

N/A

Dr. ptoo, CBS. George K, Gichuru
ICPAK Member No. 9262
Head of Accounting UnitPrincipal Secretary
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The Notionol Treosury
Petroleum Development Levy fund - The Notionol Treosury
Annuol Reporls & tinonciol Stolemenls lor lhe yeor ended 30rh Jvne 2023.

Annex II(a): Inter-Fund Confirmation Letter

The Petroleum Development Levy Fund wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed as at 30th June 2023 as indicated in the table below

Confirmation of amounts received by The State Depsrtment for Petroleum as at 30th June 2023

Amounts Disbursed by The Petroleum Development Levy Fund (Kshs)
as at 30th tune 2023

Amount Received
by The State

Department of
Petroleum

(KShs) as at 3Oth

June 2023
(E)

Differences
(KShs)

(F)=(D-E)
Reference
Number

Date
Disbursed

Recunent (A) Development (B) Inter-
Ministerial

(c)

Total
(D)=(A+B+C)

l't July 2022
To 30th June
2023

22,566,t28,572 22,s66,t28,512 22,566,128,572 Nir

Total 2?.,566,178,572 27,566,178,572 22,566,128,577 Nil

I confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated

Head of Accounts Department:

Name: George K. Gichuru Sign Date
(

l8
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The Nollonol Treosury
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Annuol Reporh & Finonclol Slqlemenls for lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023

Annex II(b): Inter-Fund Confirmation Letter

The petroleum Development Levy Fund wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed as at 30th June 2023 as indicated in the table below

Confirmation of amounts received by The state Department for Energy as at 30th June 2023

Amounts Disbursed by The Petroleum Development Levy Fun (Kshs)d

as at 30th June 2023
Differences (KShs)

(F)=(D-E)

Amount Received
by The State

Department of
EnergY

(KShs) as at 30rh

Jrne 2023

Total
(D)=(A+B+C)

lnter-
Ministerial

(c)

Development (B)Recunent (A)Date
Disbursed

Reference
Number

NiI2,833,000,00 2,83 3,000,0002,83 3,000,00
1"\ July 2022
To 3Orh June
2023

NiI", 000833 0002 33 000 002 833 00 00Total

I confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated

n ..D,t".hr.llr.hSName: Geor e K. Gichuru Si

Head of Accounts Department:

t9



The Nolionol Treotury
Pchollum Developmenl tevy fund - Ihe Noflonol Treqtury
Annuol Reporls & Flnonclol Slolemenls for lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023.

Annex III: Reporting of Climale Relevant Expenditures

This is a holding Account. Funds are disbursed to the implementing ministries

Project
Activities

Source Of
Funds

Implemeoting
Partners

Project Name Project
Description

Project
Obiectives

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4

Nil Nit NilNil Nil Nil II
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The Nollonol TIeosury
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Annex IV: Reporting on Disaster Management Expenditure

This is a holding account. Funds are disbursed to the implementing ministries.

Column I Column II Column III Column IV Column V Column
VI

Column
VII

Programme Sub-
programme

Disaster
Type

Category ofdisaster related Activity that
require expenditure reporting
(responsdrecovery/m iti gation/preparedness)

Expenditure
item

Amount
(Kshs.)

Comments

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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The Nqtionol Treosury
Pe{rolcum Dcvelopmenl tevy fund - Ihe Noflonol Treosury
Annuol Reporls & tlnonclol Stotements lor lhe yeot ended 30rh June 2023.

Annex V: Inter Entity Transfers

Revenue and Payment Analysis

DATE
RECEIPTS(FiY 22.

PV. NO Etr-ltty- 2l) PAYMENTS B4LANCE=(A+C)-B
CA

l-1u12022 Bal B1F 3,550J52,013.60

7 -Ju12022

7 -ltl-2022

8-Jrl-2022

121u12072

l3-Jul-2022

r07r00l5l9l

10710015192

KRA 3,549,268.25

8l,786,45 I .70

I l6 779 616.60

.?,1!3,80 r,281 .q5

3,635,587 ,733.s5KRA

107100t5193

10710015194

10710015 t 95

KRA 3,752,3 0.1 5

KRA

KRA

s7,459!21,8..1q

129,414,753.10

3 ,809,8 17,568.65

157,297,948.70

),?32tr32!32\.7s

4,096,5 30,270.4514-lul202Z

l5-Jrl-2022

107100t5197

10710015196

KRA

KRA 10,493,43 0.30 I

18-Jul-2022

19-Jul-2022

10710015205

107100 r 5206

KRA 135,65 768. l5

?le,yL72U'

135,306,710.15

4,t07,023,700.75

4,242,681,468.90

- 4,502,227,261.65 .

4,637 ,533,911 .80

7

KRA

20-Jul-2022

22Ju12022

l07 t 001 5207 KRA

22

21,408 l5 r .30 4,65 2,13 3. l0
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The Nqlionol Treosury
Pelroleum Developmenl Levy fund - The Nolionol Treosury

Annuol Reports & Finonciol Slolements for lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023

DATE

22-fu12022

25-Jul-2022

26-Jd-2022

?-7 -Jtl-2022

781u12022

29-Jt12022

7-Aug-2022

2-Au9-2022

3-Aug-2022

4-Aug-2022

5-Aus-2022 I- --i
i

5-Aug-2022 l
I

8-Atg-2022 
i

l0-Aug-2022 l

PV. NO Entity

l07l00l 520E KRA

l 071 001 5209 KRA

107100r5210 KRA

10710015211 KRA

10710015212

10710015213 KRA

l07l 001 5214 KRA

1071 001 521 5 KRA

1071001 52 r 6 KRA

10710015217 KRA

10710015218 KP"A
M-inistry otP"troteu,

PV. NO. I l8 & Minin

10710015219 KRA

l07l00l 5220 KRA

RECEIPTS(F/Y 22-
23) PAYMENIS

B

BALANCE:(A+C)-B
CA

i

I

I

l

i

i

I

I

I

64,211,282.30

178,568,946.75

6,886,422.40

6,303,229.85

7.25

.208,1 55,55 8.40

r 97,1 r 6,5 87.30

245,t86,724.30

t54,372,325.20

4,317,838.80

63,992,580.70

192,229,404.85

198,325,97 | .20

5,0q!,0qg,0qq:qq

4,723,153,4t5 .40

4,90t,722,3 62.t 5

4,908,608,784. s s

4,914,912,0t4.40

4,93 I ,934,8 9l .65

5, 140,090,450.05

5,337,207,037 .35

5 ,582,393,7 61 .65

s,736,766,086.8s

5,741,083,925 .65

7 4 | ,083 ,925 .65

805,076,506.3 5

997 ,305 ,9 | 1 .20

l , r 95,63 1,8 E2.40t07 t001522t KRA

23



The Notionol Treotury
Petroleum Developmenl tevy Fund - The Notlonol Treosury
Annuol Reporls & Flnonciol Stolemelt! lor the yqgr en!99 30rh June 2023.

RECEIPTSGTY 22-
23)DATE

tt-lusz]Q

t2-AtE:292

PV. NO

t0710015222

Eotity

KRA 277,331,05?.45

6\01!;l!0,6Q

16,339,227.60

3,782,951.05

104,36E,I 17.40

218,039,071.85

103,9E4,201.80

328,2n,776.30

l5 I ,5 I 3,63 7.05

BALANCE:(A+C).8

1,472,9_6?p39.8s

1,4 7q,990,5J0.4s

r,495,329,758.0s

_!,!eL!!219e )0

- _r,qq31180'826.s0

. _ 1,8.21,s19,898.3s

r,e?!,104,100. r s

253,7-t), 876.45

2,4 5 13.50

z,625,8 r 9,359.8 5

2,737 ,89s_,7,81 .10

2,761,781,997 .10

z 772 185 555.00

787,619,320.2s

A
PAYMENTS

B

I

It071001s223 KRA

l5-

16-

Au9-2022

4vgrz9f?

107 t0015224

10710015225

KRA

KRA

-]t-:4w292?,

_t-8_-"$ytg2p22

19-Aug-J022

22-AvE]AZZ

73-Aus-201?

24-Aug-2022

t0710015226 KRA l
107 t0015227

10710015228

KRA

KRA

107 t00r5229

10710015230

KRA

KRA

l07l00l 523 l

10710015232

10710015233

KRA 220 ,5 E9,E46.3 5

25-Aue:?-022

26-A 022

KRA

KRA

lL2,076,423.25

23,886,214.00

29-Aus-20?2 I l07lool5234 KRA 10,403,557.90 |

30-A -2022 107100 t 5235
I

I

I

KRA
I.21ts,433,76s

3l-Aue-2022 10710015236 KRA

24

l4l/q1,111.3 0 2,929,320,653.55
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The Notlonql TIeosury
Pelroleum Deyetopmenl levy tund - The Nolionol Treosury
Annuol Reporls & Finonclol Slotemenls for lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023

DATE

2-Se -2022

2-Sep-2022

PV. NO Entity

Ministry of Petroleum
P.V. NO.l24l & Mini ng

I 071 001 5237 KRA

107r0015238 KRA

r0710015239 KRA

l07l 001 5240 KRA

l07 t 00l 5241 KRA

RECEIPTS(F/Y 22.
23) PAYMENTS

B

BALAIVCE=(A+C)-B

C

1

__ i__ _t?s,946,420.60

4z.q!9q,99,0_._qq ?2?132,0$:3:51

233,09_6,509.15

423,7sr,92t.95

s0 3.90

649,321,653.9s

731,467 ,069 .25

857,413,489.85

926,494,319.4s

952,237,652 00

9s6,907,l28.ts

l ,08s, r 78,940.30

t,272,061,827 .4s

10710015242 KRA

1 071 0015243 KRA

107 t0015244 KRA

10710015245 KRA

10710015246 KRA

t07 t0015247 KRA

10710015248 ry of Energy

A

3,775,855.60

r 90,65 5,412.80

79,838,371.9s

2-Sep-7022

1' vp29-zt

6-Sep-2022

8-Sep-2072

8-Sep-2022

I

I

I

145,73 I ,360.05

82,145,41 5.30

69,080,829.60

25,143,332.55

.4,669,476.ts

128,271,8t2.15

186,882,887.1 5

10,425,l 8 8.80

9-Sep-2022

1,2-Sep-2!22

l4-Sep-20.2-2

| 5 -Sep-2022

16-Sep-2022

l9-s 2022

l9-Sep-2022 l 071 0015249

Minist

KRA

25

306,203,039.3 s

t,282,487 ,016.25



The Nollonol Treotury
Pelroleum Developmenl levy Fund - The Notlonol lreosury
Annuol Reporls & Flnonclol Slolements lor lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023.

DATE

_ _ 26-S9p;z022-

27-Sep-2022

4-Oct-2022

5 -Oct-2022

PV. NO Entity
RECEIPTS(F/Y 22-
23) PAYIVIENTS

B

BALAIYCE=(A+q-B
C

1,588,690,055.60

A

-t
?o-&p -2022 10710015250

2l-Se 2022 1071001525 I

22-Sep--2_02?_- - l07l 0015252

zj-!ep-2022 10710015253

26-Sep-2022 _ P.V. NO

KRA
Ministry of Petroleum

KRA

KRA

30,860,650.00 1,619,s50,70! 60

7.35t3Aze,t2 I ,632,980,3 02.95

KRA t3,348,492.65

442,281.05

I,646,328J95:90 .

t$_q\t?7_t):-175 9s

446,206,790.6548246 & MIllBc 86.00

,741,896.80 i., 
T

22,405,3t4.85

463,2!XL6]J:!5

486,3 54,002.30

,).7,?31,122.9t

547,92t,907 .55

s6t,696,04'1.6s

773,180,253.3 0

1,066,51q,813.70

1,612,587,747 .00

107r0015254 KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

l7

t 07 l00l 5255

?g:$pp?on l07l00l 5256

29-Sep-2022 l07l00l 5259

30-s -2022 10710015260

3-Oct-2022 10710015261

3 880 793.55

30,687,111.70

t3,774,t40.10

2l1,484 05.65

1071001s262

10710015263

KRA

KRA

293.,336,560.40

546,070,933.30

6-Oct-2022 l07l00l 5265 KRA

26

85,326,467.10 1,697,9 t4,214.10
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The Notionol TreosurY
Petroleum DeveloPmeni Levy Fund - The Notionol Treosury

I -i * il I T I T I I I I T I I I. I

Annuol Reporls & Finonciol Slolements lor lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023

DATE

7 -Oc1-2022

1l -Oct-2072

1l -Oct-2022

12-Oct-7022

l3-Oct-2022

14-Oct-2022

17 -Oct-2022

l8-Oct-2022

19-Oct-2022

2l -Oct-7022

PV. NO

I 071 001 5266

RECEIPTSGTY 22.
23) PAYMENTS

B

BALANCE:(A+C).8
C

I 0710015268

I 071 00 I 5270

107100t5271

107 t0015273

107100t5274

10710015421

107 t0015277

l07t00I5279

I07l00 t 5280

Ministry of Energy

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

A

34,9 I 8,003.65

111,82250

176,2\t,978.15

44,928,763.90

14,016,005.55

I9,r2r,920.8!

19,580,90s.45

78,08 8, l 0l .60

5t7,959,749.70

28,318,209.5s

23,087,5 50. l0

48,220,lLz.95

63,820,908.10

19,769,499.15

),73483J2t7.75

| ,73.2,944,040.35

I ,909,1 s6,0 l 8.5 0

|,954,084,782.40

I ,968,1 00,787.95

|,987 ,222,708.80

2,006,803,614.2s

2,084,891 ,71 5.85

2,602,85t,465.ss

2,631,169,615.10

2,654,257 ,225 .20

2,702,47'.| ,338.1s

._ ?,766,22"8,,?46.?5

2,786,067 ,7 45.40

2,798,223,786.90

Entity

KRA

j

I

l

I

I

l 071 001 5281 KRA

l 071 001 5282 KRA

l 071001 5283 KRA

10710015284 KRA

24-Oct-2022

25 -Oct-2022

26-Oct-2022

27 -Oct-2022

28-Oct-2022 l 071 001 528 5 KRA

27

t2,155,54 t .50



The Notionol Treosury
Pelroleum Developmenl Levy Fund - The Nolionol Treotury
Annuol Reports & Flnonclol Slolemenlr for the yeor ended 30ri June 2023.

RECEIPTSGTY 22.

Z-Nov-7022

3-Nov-2022

4-Nov-2022

l07l00 t 5288

1 0710015289

10710015290

DATE

3l-Oct-2022

I -Nov-2022

PV. NO

10710015286

10710015287

PAYMENTS
B

2,q33,900,_o_qq,q.0

BALANCE=(A+C)-B
C

2,837,01 4.65

2,976,9|,227 .40

3,219,17E,413.70

3,46s,t28,!22 80

3,468,327,1 28.70

3,477,287,288.75

3,487,1 08, 656.25

654, r 08,656.25 ,

7 t5,562,762.35

780,990,418.55 ___

84e.,73!;79 Q.0

I,088,744,859.5 5

Entity 23)

A

KRA 38,788,947.75 '

KRA 139,898,992.75

KRA 242,267,t86.30

L4lplqrl q9. r0KRA

KRA ,198,605.903

9-Nov-2022

8-Nov-2022

8-Nov-2022

107t001529r

10710015292

KRA

KRA

.M in istry. _of Energy

KRA

KRA

P.V. NO.4753

10710015293

10710015294

q,960,160.0s

_ 9,821,367.s0 
|

4,I06.r0

65 427 6s6.20

9-Nov-2022

l0-Nov-2022

I l-Nov-2022

l4-Nov-2022

l5-Nov-2022

l6-Nov-2022

10710015295

10710015296

10710015297

KP.A

KRA

_ 68244,16t.35

- ?)2!s_19,?7e.6s

87,24E,6s 8. l0KRA ,_ _!,r7 993 5l?.65

l !4 5 ?,q-8_qrr,q l q0 ._.

5

l07l 001 5298 KRA 276,694,667.35

- -l-,O
17 -Nov -2022 10710015299 KRA

28

176,257,512.65 :
65
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The Nolionol Treosury
Petroleum Developmenl Levy Fund - The Notlonol Tleotury
Annuol Reports & Flnonciol Slolemenls for lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023.

DATE PV. NO

I 8-Nov-2022 r 10710015300

Entity

KRA

r 071001 5301 KRA

10710021 5302 KRA

l07l 001 5303 KRA

RECEIPTS(FTY 22.
23)

54,1 18,398.65

17,640,420.9s

13,684,928.95

18,709,441.65

4,414,299.90

30,194,349.3 0

9,46t,677.s0

70,8 82,669.05

520,824,E50.65

7,990,5 8l .50

2,4t5,134.45

8,6ls 45

A

PAYMENTS

B

- 1,6!3,061,0e6.30

. tJ00,704,517.2s

- 1,714,389,446.20

- t,713,098,887.85

1,000,000,000.00. 733,098,887.85

. 737,513,187 .'75

- 761,707,537 .05

- 777,169,214.55

848,05 1,883.60

- 1,3 68,876,734.25

1,376,E67,315.75

I,379,282,450.20

!l_qf,8?q!3 !6.6q .

|,435,047 ,793.2s

BALA1CE=(A+C)-B
C

2l -Nov-2022

ZZ-Nov-2022

23-Nov-2022

24-Nov-2022

24-Nov-2022

25-Nov-2022

28-Nov-2022

29-Nov-2022

30-Nov-2022

P.V.NO.5394
Ministry of Petroleum i

& Mining

I

I

.l

I 071001 5304 KRA

l07l00l 530s KRA

I07l00l 5306 KRA

1071001 5307 KRA

I 0710015308 KRA

l-Dec-2072

5-Dec-2022

6-Dec-2022

7 -Dec-2022

l07 r 00l 5309 KRA

1071 001s310 KRA

10710015311 KRA

10710015312 KRA 47,149,436.60

8-Dec-2022 10710015313 KRA

29

18,486,556.40 I,453,534,349.65 _



The Notionol Treosury
Pelroleum Developmenl [evy tund - Ihe Nolionol T]eosury
Annuol Reports & tinonclol Slolemenls lor lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023

DATE PV. NO

9-Dec-2022 10710015314

13-Dec-2022 1071001 53 I 5

l4-Dec-2022 10710015216

l5-Dec-2022 107100153 I 7

l6-Dec-2022 107100153 I 8

19-Dec-2022 107100153 l9

20-Dec-2022 10710015320

21-Dec-2022 10710015321

22-Dec-2022 10710015322

23-Dec-2022 10710015323

28-Dec-2022 't07 t00ts42z

30-Dec-2022 10710015325

i

t

I

Entity

KRA

RECEIPTS(F/Y 22-
23) PAYMENTS

B

BALANCE:(A+C)-R
C

r ,5 19,91 I , 533.60

t)619,996,792.25

1,930,671,327 .05

2,101, 185,140.40

2,126340,033.85

2, 139,3 5 5,95 I .60

2,455,450,t65.45 _

472, 93 5,8 18.30

556 478,83 8.1 0

A

!qrlz?,183.?5

_!qq,0$,?!!.6s

310,674,534.80

r0r-5u,8L3Js 
I

25,2

- 12!21_s,2)1.7s

24,E29,60s.50

2e_!,2q4,608.35

17,485,652.85

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA _ . -2,164,185,557.10 _.

KRA

KRA

KRA 83,543, 019.80 | 2

')

KRA 2U,716_,639:80

_,?2920,825.70

2,786,195,468.90 , -

,! t6, ! 16, 295.60KRA

30-Dec-2022 10710014s326

3-Jan-2023 10710015327 2,EE0,465 51.00

559.3 5KRA 55,961,263.75 2

KRA 8,3 87,991 .65

.l

I

4-Jan-2023 107 t 00l 5328 KRA

30

124 ?2t]72.80 ttil_ 823.80
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The Notlonol Treosury
Petroleum Development levy Fund - The Nollonol Treosury
Annuol Reports & Flnonclol Stolements for the yeor ended 30th June 2023.

DATE

5-Jan-2023

6-!an-2023

9-Jan-2023

l0-Ian-2023

I I -Jan-2073

12-Jan-7023

l3-Jan-2073

l6-Jan-2023

l7 -Jan-2023

l8-Jan-2023

l9-Ian-2023

20-Jan-2023

24-Jan-2023

24)an-2021

PV.NO

I 071 0015 329

RTCEIPTSFTY 22-
23) PAYI\{ENTS

B

BALA.NCE=(A+C)_B

C

3?6,2s7,368.s0

3,728,7 6s,2t0.30

3,753,82s,r29.60

3J66,428,693.t0

3,772,666,21I .70

3,777 ,969,252.05

3,793, 1 96,046.1 5

3,928,682,332.ts

4,099,283 ,778.15

, 1, \ 5_1,s 3 1,8 42-.-0-s-

4,431 ,422,t80.05

4,444,248,825 .15

!,4J1,0W76? 81

4,532,4',19,485.6s

4,57 5,796,398.6s

Entity

KRA

A

74,!e3J5L4.70

2,!qz,!41 lqq

25,059,919.30

r 2,603,56J.s0

6,237,5t8.60

5,303,040.3s

15,226,794.10

r 35,486,286.00

I

I

I
I

I

I

I

1

i

I

l

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

-r

!

I

I

I

I.'f

107100153 30

107100 1 533 1

107100153 32

l07l 001 s33 3

I 07 t 001 5334

10710015335

107100153l6

10710015337

l07l 001 5338

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

170,601,44

54,248,06

6.00

3.90

1071001 5 33 9

I 071001 5340

l07l00l 534 I

KRA

KRA

KRA

277,E90,3 3 E.00

12,826,645.10

3 0,83 8,937.70

l07l00l 5342 KRA 57,39r,722.80

43,3 16,91 3,0025-Jut-2023 I 071 0015343 KRA

3l



The Notlonol Treosury
Petoleum Developmenl tevY Fund - The Notionol Treo3ury

orh & tinonciol Slolements lor lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023Annuol Rep

DATT,

26-J an-2023

27 -Jan-2023

RECETPTSGTv 22-

PV. NO

10710015344 KRA

10710015345 KRA

10710015346 KRA

10710015347 KRA

10710015348 KRA

Entity 23)

A
PAYMENTS

B

BAIANCE:(A+C).8
C

!,52!.,408147 6.3s

,893,3 17,666 s5

120,612,077.70

196,909 190 4
L

30-Jan-2023

3l-Jan-2023

r8,e28,863.101

I

30,8!!,213.3! L
i

5?_,912_,t21n11

85,?_!J,q71?!

1s9,156,63!?9

l6{,65?,11!.8.q

77,634,987 .55

127 650 739.30

4,9t2,246,529 .65

4 ,943,092,47.2.95

n 25 066.00
I -F eb-2023

2-Feb-2023 10710015349 KRA

107100153 50 KRA

1071001 535 I KRA

107100153 52 KRA

10710015353 KRA

5,08_.1 ,43 8,940.75

5,-240,895,5 75.45

5,40!,548,021 .25

5,483,I 83 00 8.80

610 833 748.10

3-Fe6-2023

6-Feb-2023

7 -Feb-2023

8-F eb-2023 5

9-Feb-2023 r 0710015354

l07l00l 5355 KRA

10710015356 KRA

KRA l0_6,lq7,Q!-q.sl

302,99U1:r05

146 041 I18.20

65!q5!1832.!t

_ -5,717 J40,798.6s

6,020,332 ,537.70

I

I
I

I

i

i
I

I

t.'
I

l0-Feb-2023

l3-Feb-2023 6 166,3'73 8s5 90

6,2t2,73 0,688.7 5.. _. "14-Feb-2023 107100153 57 KRA
Ministry of Petroleum

& Miningl14-Feb-2023 1071001535 8

32

201 EE2 242.95 2,931.70
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The Notionol Treosury
Pelroleum Development levy tund - The Nolionol Treosury
Annuol Reporls & Flnonclol Slolemenls tor lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023

l5-F eb-2023

PV. NO

l07l00l 5 3 59

DATE Entity
RECEIPTSGTY 22-
23) PAYMENTS

B

6,000,000,000.00

-_ 9e0.ry{,?86.q9 _9L

BALATYCE=(A+C)-B

cA

16-Feb-2023

17 -Feb-2023

20-F e6-2023

20-F eb-2023

7l -F eb-2023

22-F eb-2023

23 -F eb-2023

24-Feb-2023

27 -F e6-2021

l07l00l 5360

10710015361

P.V. NO. 10716

107100 1 5362

l 07100 r s363

r 0710015 364

l07l00l 53 65

KRA
Ministry of Petroleum
& Mining

KRA

7,2J97,229:01

!l?,6!3,289.50

69,493,8 12.85

9,859,608.20

44,855,384.70

303,71 6,I 66.1 5

8,849,698.65

27,271,483.45

25,6t6,997.t0

45,937,416.3s

493,545,212.00

32,265,931.10

144,691,720.80

KRA

KRA

1
I

I

i

Q;\118?9230;ry

6,626,503,520.25

6,695,997,3 33. r 0

695,997,333.t0

705,856941 30

750,712,326.00

t,054,428,492.1s

I,063,278,l 90.80

|,085,549,674.25

985,388.2s

120,602,385.35

166,s39,801 .70

q69,qq:,01i:79 _

692,350,944.80

837,047,665.60

27 -F eb-2023

28-Feb-2023

| -Mar-2023

2-Mar70Z3

r 0710015 366

P.V. NO. I 1040 & Mini

r 07l 001453 67

1071 001 5 368

I 071 0015 369

I 071 001 5170

KRA

KRA

KRA
Ministry of Petroleum

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

3-Mar-2023 10710015 371 KRA

33



The Nollonol T]eqsury
Pelroleum Developmenl Levy Fund - Ihe Notlonol lreosury
Annuol Rep orb & Flnonciol Slolemenls for the yeor ended 30th June 2023.

RECEIPTS(F/Y 22-
23)

75,3 5s,468.45

77,710,432.70

126,699,509.00

I 8,616,994.30

I 9, 163,502.25-

200,5 84,827.00

PAYMENTS
B

BALANCE=(A+C)-B
C

DATE

6-Mar-2023

7-Mu-2023

PV. NO Entity

10710015372 KRA

107100 t 5373 KRA

l 07100153 74 KRA

1071001537s KRA

l07l 0015376 KRA

1 0710015377 KP"A

I 071 0015378 KRA

10710015379 KRA

107100153 80 KRA

1071001 5381 KRA

A

13-Mar-2023

l4-Mar2023

l5-Mar-2023

l6-Mar-2023

35,243,S98 35 l
I

19,1 5 1,947.9-0-l _

01,1q2,54q?! I

I

9t2,39\134:9s

t9glq8,l_q6.7t

I , r 16,808,075,75

!,13_5_,_125-r_qp,05

_!J !4,1_8!,s22 30

1,355,173,399.30

t):el,!y,2)7 6s

l,609,56%245.5s

!,8!l,Ql !,7e3.80

I ,867,827 ,955 85

l ,9s4,34q,954.45

t,969,232,828.3s

I ,996,743,91 0.05

I

I
8-Mar-2023

9-Mw-2023

l0-Mar-2023

2

2

17 -Mar-2023

20-Mar-2023

2l-Mar-2023

22-Mar-2023

23-Mar-2023

10710015372

10710015373

10710015384

KRA

KP.A

KRA

-19,'!25-tQ2-
05

86,5 18,098.60
I

14,886,773.90 i

27,511 081.70

10710015385 KRA 23,1 86,461 .80 2,019,93 0,37 I .85I+
I

I24-Mar-2023 10710015386 KRA

34

104,4!18!l:10 i 2 124,348,222.95
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The Nolionol Treosury
Petroleum Development Levy Fund - The Notlonol TIeosury
Annuol Repods & finonciol Slotements fol lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023.

DATE PV. NO

27 -lMar-2023 | l07 t 00l 53 87

28!1qr-2Q23-

29-Mar-2023

3Q'\1q\!Q23

3.1-Mar-2_0!-3

3-Apr-20?3

4-Apr-7023

5-Apr-2023

6-Apr-7023

I 071001 53 88

Entity

KRA

KRA

1071001 53 E9 KRA

l 07100153 90 KRA

l07l 0015391 KRA

r 07 r 00l 5392 KRA

10710015393 KRA

I 07100153 94 KRA

r 07l00l 5 395 KRA

I 071001 5396 KRA

RECEIPTS(FTY 22-
23)

l54, 587,574.85

16,999,504.40

86,463,601 .00

178,904,9s2.25

184,797,190.!5

19,347,937 .70

2s,47 6,036.10

55,613,727.10

9,308,797.s0

89,s26,646.50

PAYMENTS
B

BALAT{CE=(A+C)-B

CA

ll-A r-2023

2,278,935,797 .80

2;lte\e11,?0?zg

- 2,382,398,903.20

- ?,561,303,855,45

- 2,7 46,101,046.00

- 2J6s,448,983.70

- 2,790,925,019.80

- 2,846,538,746.90

2,855,847 ,544.40

: - .. -- --?-,2-"1!;l4,l2q 90

- l,l 87,026,357 .60

- 3,5 54,313,279.20

- 3,630,385,124.00

12-Apr-2023

13-Apr-2023

l4-A pr-20-1) -

17-Apr-2023

t!Aprlpz)

l07l 0015397

l07l 00 t 5398

r 071 001 5399

107100t 5400

KRA

KRA

KRA

24r,652,166.70

367,286,921.60

76,071,844.80

KRA 402,904,778.10 4,033,289,902.10

4,097,1L9,691.25107r0015401 KRA

35

63,829,789.15



The Nolionol Treotury
Petroleum Developmenl levy Fund - Ihe Notlonol Treo:ury
Annuol Reporls & tinonciol Slolements for the yeor ended 30th June 2023'

DATE PV. NO Entity
RECEIPTS0TY 22-
23) PAYMENTS BALANCE=(A+C)-B

ABC

19-Apr-2023 107 l00l 5402 KRA 195,671,959.65 4,792,791,650.90

92,79t,650.90
Ministry of Petroleum

2o:API -2023 P.V. NO. 13546 & Mining 4,200,000 0.00

20-Apr-2023

24-Ap r-7023

zs-Apr-20.!

26--Ap-ry2023

l07l 001 5403

l 0710015404

KRA

KRA

KRA

14,451,812.70,

2 447 22s.30

107,243,463.60

133!6_?0,6q! ?q

l5 8,3 9 I ,461.3 0

218,346,272.20

488,580,442.0s

55 5,3 8 1,286.65

775,478,509.25

790 30

847 ,429,515 .80

884,01 7,940.70

899,698,372.40

l 071001 5405 24 ,700,772.40

107100 t 5406 KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

59,954,8 10.90

270,234,169.85

_66,8_00,844.6028

-Apr-2023 
]

-Apr-2023 I

l07l00l 5407

z-May-201]

5-Ma -2023

4-May-202!

10710015408

107100 15409

10710015410

220,097,222.60

5-Yqy -2023

l07l 00154 I I

10710015412

KRA

KRA

KRA

l5 4ll 630.05

56,!19,3e6.s0

36,5 88,404.90

15,680,431 .70l0-Ma -2023 l07r0015413

I 0-May -2023 10710015414 KRA 99,910,574.60 999,608,947.00

Il0-May-2023 I 071001 5415 KRA

36

423,33 0,360.60 ,422,939,307.60
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The Notionol Treqsury
Petroleum Developmenl levy Fund - The Nollonol Treosury
Annuol Reports & Finonclol Stolemenls for lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023

DATE

'll-May-1023

tJ-MgtyL023

15-May-2023

16-May-2023

17 -May-2023

18-May-2023

19-May-2023

22-May-2023

23-May-2023

25- -2023

25-May-2023

26-May-2023

-le $1y-2Q23 -

30-May-2023

PV. NO

l07lqqll4lq -

10710015417

l07l00l s4l8

r 07100154 l 9

I 07100155 l0

10710015511

10710015512

10710015513

10710015514

l07t00l55I5

RECETPTSGTY 22-
23)

29,494,814.95

7,700,638.90

8,408,852.10

6,708,186 70

72,066,577.95

5,982,4t9.45

266,891 ,984. I 5

186,170,444.40

63,07 5,166.20

I 0l ,28 0.80

PAYMENTS
B

BALANCE:(A+C).8
C

).,4-s?,!14,127:s1.

t,460,134,761 .4s

I ,468,543,613.5 5

|,475,2s1,800.25

1,547 ,318,378.20

1,553,300,797.65

1,820,1 92,78 1 .80

2,006,363,226.20

2 ,069 ,438 ,392 .40

z)79fl3,se3.70

2,346,044,94t .70

2,374,062,627 .00

2,379,s10,604.00

2,398,037 ,992.60

2,648,195,531.90

En tity

KRA

A

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

KRA

10710015516

10710015517

107100r5518

KRA

KRA

KRA

I 75,321 ,348.50

28,01 7,685.30

s,!!1?77 09

18,527,388.60

250,157 ,539 _30

l07l00l 55 I 9 KRA

I1-Mav"-?923 I 0710015 520 KRA

37



The Notionol Treosury
Pelroleum Developmenl levy Fund - Ihe Nollonol lteosury

rts & Flnonclol Slolements lor lhe yeor ended 30rh June 2023'Annuol Repo

DATE

2-In-2023

5 -Iun-2023

PV.NO Entity

l07 r00l5s2l KRA

l 0710015522 KRA

RECETPTS€rY 22-
23)

t7,713,176_.95 ,

PAYMENTS
B

BALA]\CE=(A+C)-B
CA

10710015526 KRA

10710015527 KRA

KRA

187,055,917.50

473,?s3,L02151_

38?5_2J1!,!q

?!7,q42,14?;s

s\,s2?,99!,4\

?0,549,5?!.7'

r6,979,?1_:59

l0 7t4,849.40

169,427,433.11

t02,,aL9919

l0 064 975.55

2,665,908,708.85

715 403,864.25

2,902,459,781 .'15

375,712,88450 _

1!4i1,?65,009 60

3,661,007,550.1 5

3,712,529,5s6.80

_ 3,733,07 9,081 .55

3,749,955,805.05

49,495 55.40

6-lun-2023 r 0710015523

1071001s s24

KRA

KRA7 -ltn-2023

8-Jun-2023 10710015525 KRA

9-lun-2023

t2-Im-2023

13-Jun-2021

l4-Jun-2023

_ Lozlq_qlll3l

l 0710015534 KRA

l5-Jun-2023 1071001553 5 KRA

1071 00 l5 53 7 KRA

3 760 670,61_4 45

l6-lun-2023 3,921,098,087.70

4,030,769,130.20

_tq40,834,I 05.75

60,000,000.00 2,580,834,105.75

l9-Jun-2023 1071001 553 6 KRA

20-Jun-2023

22-ltn-2023

1071001553 8 KRA
Ministry of Petroleum

P.V. NO. 17351 & Mini ng

22-Jm-2023 l07l00l 5539 KRA

38

I 7,091 489.65 ?,se'!_, 925,595.40
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The Notionol Treosury
Pelroleum Developmenl Levy tund - The Nolionol Treosury
Annuol Reportr & tinonclol Slstements for lhe yeor ended 30'h June 2023.

DATE

22-Jun-2073

23-Jun-2023

26-Jun-2023

27 -ltn-2023

29-Jun-2023

30-Jun-2023

10-Iun-2023

30-Jun-2023

30-!un-2023

PY. NO Etrtity

l07l00l 5540 KRA

l07l00l 5579 KRA

10710015580 KRA

107100t 5581 KRA

1071001 s s82 KRA

10710015583 KRA

r0710015584 KRA

l07l00l 55 85 KRA

10710015586 KRA

TOTALS

FJCETPTS(FTY 22-
23) PAYMENTS

B

2S 99,728 72.00

BALAI{CE=(A+C)_B

C

7,93t,727,537 .55

?,954,494,32=9 9s_ _

2,965,023,478.90

2,985,974,890.45

3,053,463,122.95

3,3 89,75 l ,874.85

3,507,083,957.80

3,s39,292,967 .85

3,59t,339,074.7s

A

3_31,8q !,21?.!!

2,?,765,72?.,!9

10,529,148.95

__ _ 20,951,411.55

67,488,232.50

336,288,7s 1 .90

117,332,082.95

3.2,209,0t0.05

52,046,056.90

_?5,14!11!,!_81lls

39



The Nolionol Treosury
Petroleum Developmenl levy tund - The Nolionol Treosury

Annuol Reporls & tinonciol Stolemenls for the yeor ended 30th June 2023

fi6n"5r- VL

accouNT No.1000205024 F.O.30

THE NATIONAI TRFASI]RY

BANX RECONCILTATJON
PETROLEUM DEV LEVY (PDL)
As at 30TH JUNE 2023 STATION NAIROBI

sh- sh.
3,389,751 ,874.85Balance as per Bank Certificate .......-....

Less -----
1. Payments in Cash Book not Yet

recorded in Bank Statement
(Unpresented Cheques) ........

2. Receipts in Bank Stalemeri not
yel recorded in Cash book . .. ..

Add ------
3. Payment in Bank Statement nol

yet recgrded in Cash Book ...

4 Receipts in Cash Book not Yel
Recorded in Bank Statemenl 201,5E7,149.90 201,587,149.90

Balancs as per cash Book .... 3,591,339,024'75
I I certify I havo verified the bank balance in the cash book with lhe bank slatemenl
and that the above recgncialion is correct

HAU THE NATIONAL
TREASURY

:#tl=*
Signature Dele

COPY TO
1 INTERNAL AUDITOR
2 AUDITOR GENERAL
3 D.G.\,S&OA

PREPARED BY

516IJANET U

OATI 20tof12023 fros

40



The NotionolTreosury
Pelroleum Developmenl Levy Fund - The NolionqlTreosury
Annuol Reporls & Finonciol Slolemenls for lhe yeor ended 30th June 2023
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The Nolionol TIeosury
Petroleum Developmenl Levy Fund - The Notionol Treosury

Annuol Rep orh & tinonciol Stotemenls lor lhe yeor ended 30th June 2023
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